MONTGOMERY HIGH SCHOOL

1016 Rt. 601 Skillman, New Jersey 08558

Telephone: (609) 466-7602 Fax: (609) 466-7689

Administration

Mr. Paul J. Popadiuk, Principal
Mrs. Corie Gaylord, Vice Principal/Supervisor of Guidance
Mrs. Naoma Green, Vice Principal/Supervisor of
Health & Physical Education
Mrs. Melissa Hodgson, Supervisor of Social Studies
Mr. Anthony Maselli, Director of Athletics
Mr. Damian Pappa, Vice Principal
Mr. Christopher Reginio, Vice Principal/Supervisor of
Career & Technical Education
Ms. Alma Reyes, Supervisor of World Languages
Mrs. Jennifer Riddell, Supervisor of Mathematics
Ms. Karen Stalowski, Supervisor of English
Mr. Jason Sullivan, Supervisor of Science
Mrs. Joanne Tonkin, Supervisor of Pupil Services
Mr. Adam Warshafsky, Supervisor of Visual & Performing Arts

Guidance Staff

Mrs. Kelly Apel, School Counselor
Mr. Keith Glock, School Counselor
Mrs. Christine Grossmann, Student Assistance Counselor
Ms. Carla Hampton, School Counselor
Ms. Patricia Musial, School Counselor
Mrs. Heather Pino-Beattie, School Counselor
Mrs. Jessica Ritson, School Counselor
Mrs. Cheryl Watson, School Counselor

Pupil Services Staff

Ms. Brady Chenot, Learning Disability Teacher Consultant Dr. Stacey Delbridge, School Psychologist Mrs. Jacquie Raftery, Learning Disability Teacher Consultant Mrs. Ellen Stein, Social Worker

MONTGOMERY TOWNSHIP SCHOOLS

Board of Education

Mr. Arun Rimal, President
Mrs. Adelle B. Kirk-Csontos, Vice President
Ms. Shalini Bhargava
Ms. Andrea Bradley
Ms. Sandra M. Donnay
Mr. Humberto Goldoni
Ms. Judy Humza
Ms. Anne Michaelson
Dr. Lei Yu

Central Office Administration

Ms. Nancy Gartenberg, Superintendent of Schools
Mr. Thomas E. C. Barclay, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum,
Instruction, and Technology
Ms. Fiona Borland, Director of Technology
Ms. Kelly Mattis, Director of Human Resources/Staff Development
Ms. Mary McLoughlin, Director of Pupil Services
Mrs. Erin Peacock, Director of Assessment and Testing
Ms. Deborah Sarmir, Director of Curriculum
Mr. Thomas Venanzi, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary



Message from the Principal

Dear Students and Parents:

It is with great pleasure that I present to you the 2014-2015 Program of Studies for Montgomery High School. The administration and faculty are dedicated to providing an extensive and varied curriculum offerings suited to meet the diverse needs of all students. The emphasis on quality education for everyone is reflected in the courses listed.

Students should consider the many opportunities offered at Montgomery High School. I encourage you to read the information contained in this document carefully prior to course selection. Additional information on each academic program is available from the school's administration and guidance staff who are willing to meet with parents and students on an individual basis.

Montgomery High School is a school of excellence. Our courses are taught by an experienced and dedicated teaching faculty and will provide students with the skills necessary to decipher complex problems and situations, develop autonomy, and value the correlation between hard work and reward. We invite all students to embark on a journey of life-long learning and individual growth, developing their social, emotional and cognitive skills for the future.

Sincerely yours,

Paul J. Popadiuk

Paul J. Popadiuk Principal

> Montgomery High School Mission Statement Montgomery High School is an academically challenging and supportive community that provides innovative educational, extracurricular, and social opportunities that encourage responsible citizenship and life-long learning.

We believe that the MHS community will:

Provide a supportive environment for academic and personal growth that fosters independence, self-reliance, and self-worth

Prepare students for a diverse and ever-changing society

Encourage the development of programs that promote good character

Enable everyone to feel physically, emotionally, and intellectually safe (free to verbally express opinions and ideas)

Value all for their unique qualities

Encourage all to pursue their individual goals in a challenging, supportive, and safe environment

Provide a positive learning environment where mutual respect and opportunity exist for the exchange of ideas among teachers, students, parents, and community members

Deliver an instructional program that addresses a variety of learning styles, interests, and levels of readiness for all students in all disciplines

Demonstrate honesty, integrity, and trustworthiness in academic pursuits and social interactions

Respect all people and cultures

Encourage participation in one's community as a social, civic, and personal responsibility

Promote learning as a life-long process.

Table of Contents

Graduation Requirements
Grading Information
Prerequisites, Course Placement & Waiver Applications
Course Change and Credit Information
Option II Guidelines
Somerset County Vocational Technical School - Shared Time Program 13
Course Descriptions
English
Social Studies
Mathematics
Science
World Languages
21st Century Life and Careers or Career Technical Education 51
Visual, Performing and Technical Arts
Health, Safety and Physical Education
Pupil Services Program
Special Education Courses
Index

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

All students must demonstrate successful completion of the following requirements:

NJ State Minimum* Graduation Requirements by Content Area

	Course and credit requirements for all students entering grade 9 in:				
	2011-2012	2012-2013	2013-2014	2014-2015	2015-2016
LANGUAGE ARTS LITERACY	20 credits aligned to grade nine through 12 standards				
MATHEMATICS	15 credits including algebra I and geometry or the content equivalent**			15 credits including algebra I and geometry or the content equivalent* *and a third year of math that builds on the concepts and skills of algebra and geometry and prepares students for college and 21st century careers	
SCIENCE	15 credits including at least five credits in laboratory biology/life science or the content equivalent** and one additional laboratory/ inquiry-based science course which shall include chemistry, environmental science, or physics			15 credits including at least five credits in laboratory biology/life science or the content equivalent**; an additional laboratory/inquiry-based science course including chemistry, environmental science, or physics; and a third laboratory/inquiry-based science course	
SOCIAL STUDIES	15 credits including satisfaction of N.J.S.A. 18A:35-1 and 2; five credits in world history; and the integration of civics, economics, geography and global content in all course offerings				
FINANCIAL, ECONOMIC, BUSINESS, AND ENTREPRENEURIAL LITERACY	2.5 credits				
HEALTH, SAFETY, AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION	3 ¾ credits in health, safety, and physical education during each year of enrollment, distributed as 150 minutes per week, as required by N.J.S.A. 18A:35-5, 7 and 8				
VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS	5 credits				
WORLD LANGUAGES	5 credits or student dem	nonstration of proficie	ency		
TECHNOLOGICAL LITERACY	Consistent with the Corcurriculum	e Curriculum Conten	t Standards, into	egrated througho	out the
21ST CENTURY LIFE AND CAREERS, OR CAREER- TECHNICAL EDUCATION	5 credits				
TOTAL CREDITS (State Minimum)		12	0***		

- *School districts may establish course and/or credit requirements which exceed the State minimums.
- ** "Content equivalent" means courses or activities that include the same or equivalent knowledge and skills as those found in traditionally titled courses which are required for high school graduation and which are aligned with the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards. This content must be taught by certified teachers, may be integrated in one or more courses, may be titled differently, or may present material in an interdisciplinary or spiral format.

***The 120 credit total is greater than the sum of the individual requirements above, to allow for student electives. New Jersey State law requires that every student pass the High School Proficiency Assessment

EARLY GRADUATION

Parents/Guardians of a student seeking early graduation may initiate a written request for special consideration. The written request by the student's parents/guardian must be filed in the Guidance Office before March 15 of the student's sophomore year for consideration for the following year. The request must include the reasons for the student's plan for fulfilling graduation requirements. A meeting with the student's guidance counselor must follow this request. The principal will review and either approve or deny the request.

GRADING INFORMATION

Montgomery High School uses a numerical grading system based on the 100 point scale.

Grade Range: 0 - 100 Lowest Passing Grade: 60 Highest Grade Allowed: 100

For your convenience, the guidelines for letter grade equivalents are listed below:

For your reference, a GPA conversion chart for a 4.0 scale is listed below:

4.0	95 +	2.7	82
3.9	94	2.6	81
3.8	93	2.5	80
3.7	92	2.4	79
3.6	91	2.3	78
3.5	90	2.2	77
3.4	89	2.1	76
3.3	88	2.0	75
3.2	87	1.9	74
3.1	86	1.8	73
3.0	85	1.7	72
2.9	84	1.6	71
2.8	83	1.5	70

Rounding: Use standard scientific rules of rounding to the nearest whole point for all marking period grades (0.5 will be rounded up for report card only).

<u>Weighted Grades</u>: Although Montgomery High School does not release information regarding class rank for admission purposes, a weighted GPA is computed to provide information for scholarships and to determine valedictorian, salutatorian, and students graduating with honors. The weighted GPA is determined by adding 5 points to Honors and AP courses.

Honor Roll/Principal's Honor Roll

Students qualify for Honor Roll if they are full time students carrying a minimum of 30 credits and all unweighted grades within a marking period are 80 or better. To qualify for the Principal's Honor Roll students must carry a minimum of 30 credits and all unweighted grades within a marking period must be 90 or better.

GRADE POINT AVERAGE

Montgomery High School computes two averages for students. The first computation is an unweighted or "true" average for all courses attempted. The second is a weighted average to determine valedictorian, salutatorian, and honor students.

Example: Unweighted GPA Computation

Course	Grade	Credit	Grade Points
English II Honors	90	5	450
World History	88	5	440
Biology Honors	80	5	400
Physical Education	82	<u>4</u>	<u>328</u>
		19	1618

1618/19 = 85.15 Un-weighted GPA (rounded to 2 decimal places)

Example: Weighted GPA Computation

Course	Grade	Additional	Total	Credits	Grade
		Points			Points
English II Honors	90	5	95	5	475
World History	88	0	88	5	440
Biology Honors	80	5	85	5	425
Physical Education	82	0	82	<u>4</u>	<u>328</u>
				19	1668

1668/19 = 87.78 Weighted GPA (rounded to 2 decimal places)

The student who has the highest average using the weighted computation after seven semesters is determined to be the valedictorian; the student with the second highest average using the weighted computation after seven semesters is determined to be the salutatorian. After seven semesters, the top ten percent of the class, based on the weighted computation, is deemed to be graduating with honors.

Transfer Students: All transcripts of incoming students are analyzed on an individual basis with appropriate credit and weight assigned based upon the course offerings of MHS. An honors course completed at another high school receives appropriate weight as long as a comparable course was available at MHS. A transfer student must attend MHS for his/her entire junior and senior years to be considered as valedictorian or salutatorian.

GRADING

Full Year Courses

- No grade may be lower than 50 for marking periods 1, 2, or 3.
- The fourth marking period grade and the final examination will reflect the actual grade earned, i.e., there is no minimum grade. A student who has attempted all course requirements will receive a grade no lower than 50 on the transcript.
- Special situation: If a student passes four marking periods but has a failing average due to the final exam grade, he/she will receive a 60* (provided that the student took the exam and made a diligent effort to pass). The * contains the notation that "the passing grade was issued despite the student's failing the exam."
- Physical Education: a student must pass two of the three quarters and have a passing average to receive credit for the course.
- Final exam
 - o Equals 12 percent of the final grade
 - Averages with the first, second, third and fourth quarters to determine the final grade.
 - Seniors who have a pre-exam average of 90 or higher are exempt from taking the exam.
 - o Any student who cheats on the exam will receive a zero.

Semester Courses

- No grade may be lower than 50 for the first half of the course.
- No grade may be lower than 30 for the second half of the course.
- No grade may be lower than 25 for the final exam, provided that the student took the exam and made a diligent effort to pass.
- Special situation: If a student passes both marking periods but has a failing average due to the final exam grade, he/she will receive the minimal passing grade of 60 (provided that the student took the exam and made a diligent effort to pass).
- The final exam is equal to 12 percent of the course grade.
- Any student who cheats on the exam will receive a zero.

Prerequisites, Course Placement & Waiver Applications

Counselors will guide students into proper placement for World Language, Math and Social Studies courses based on established prerequisites. English and Science placement will be based on diagnostic strategies including previous grade earned, proficiency assessments, level of interest and teacher recommendation. MHS faculty and administrators strongly believe that the prerequisites set forth in the high school's Program of Studies are reasonable guidelines. Whenever prerequisites are not applicable, counselor and teacher recommendation should be adhered to. However, if the student did not meet the expectations that have been established for a course, but would like to challenge themselves beyond the MHS recommendation, a waiver application must be obtained in the Guidance office and submitted through the appropriate department supervisor for approval. In order to maintain balanced class sizes and consistent learning environments, deadlines will be strictly adhered to and level changes, if waiver is approved, will be subject to supervisor approval.

COURSE CHANGE AND CREDIT INFORMATION

Course Withdrawal

Students are placed in courses after serious discussion among students, parents and counselors. Students are encouraged to develop persistence and resilience in honoring their commitments to course selection by attending and satisfactorily completing the courses in which they enroll.

Students have until **April 11th, 2014** to make adjustments to their course requests. After this period of time, changes will only be made when concerns regarding the student's schedule are initiated through the Montgomery High School professional staff. **Requests for discretionary schedule changes will not be considered (e.g., teacher, elective courses, physical education, and early dismissal).** Only changes that are deemed educationally beneficial for the student will be considered and reviewed. Of course, parents and students will be involved in this process before any final decisions are made.

Students must carry a minimum of 3 classes a day (30 credits total) to be considered a full-time student at MHS. Any request to drop a course which would cause the students total credits to fall below the 30 credit minimum will not be permitted without administrative approval.

All course withdrawals after the completion of Marking Period 1 will result in a record of WP (Withdrawal Passing) or WF (Withdrawal Failing) on the official transcript and report card.

Level Changes

(e.g., Advanced Placement to Honors, Honors to College Preparatory and College Preparatory to General Ed.)

All level changes should be made in consultation with the department supervisor, guidance counselor, teacher, and parent(s)/guardian(s). It is imperative that all parties reflect carefully on the proposed changes to determine whether they are in the student's best interest; they might have an influence on the overall student schedule.

All level changes occurring after the completion of marking period 1 will result in a record of WP (Withdrawal Passing) or WF (Withdrawal Failing) on the official transcript and report card. Grades earned at the time of the

level change will be transferred to the new course and will be included in the cumulative average.

Incomplete Grades

When a student returns to school after an absence, he/she is responsible for making up all missed assignments. The work should be completed as soon as possible after returning to school. If the absence occurs within the last two weeks of the marking period and the work is not completed by the time grades are submitted, an INC (Incomplete) is given as the marking period grade. Students have a maximum of 10 days to submit all work after the end of the marking period. Failure to do so will result in the student receiving no credit for all missing assignments with the potential of failing the marking period.

Early Dismissal Privilege

The MHS Early Dismissal privilege is an opportunity for seniors to leave school earlier by one period; provided they continue to meet the required 30 credit minimum.

OPTION II GUIDELINES

(Alternative pathways for attaining High School Graduation Credits)

General Statement: Option II establishes alternate pathways for students of Montgomery High School to satisfy graduation requirements and meet the New Jersey Core Curriculum Standards in accordance with New Jersey Administrative Code {N.J.A.C. 6A:8-5.1 (a) *I ii*}. Option II alternative experiences are voluntary. Students may fulfill the requirements for graduation by pursuing credits earned through the traditional classroom environments, alternative learning experiences availed through Option II or through a combination of both programs.

Option II permits students to engage in a variety of alternative learning experiences which are stimulating and intellectually challenging, enabling them to fulfill or exceed expectations set forth by the academic department's Core Curriculum Content Standards. Students may take part in Option II alternatives by participating in the following: student exchange programs, theme-based programs, accredited college coursework, concurrent enrollment at colleges and universities, on-line and distance learning opportunities.

Transportation, personal safety and well-being, specialized equipment and any and all costs not otherwise provided by Montgomery High School will be the responsibility of the student and/or parent/guardian.

Rationale for Option II:

- 1. Credit Recovery *To make up a subject failed during regular school session*:
 - Credits are awarded after the recovery course and the respective MHS proficiency assessment have been successfully completed. Successful completion requires the minimum passing grade.
 - The course must have a minimum of 60 clock hours to recover five credits.
 - (P) pass or (F) fail will be recorded on the student's transcript and a number grade of 60 will factor into the G.P.A. for a passing grade of (P).
 - It is the student's responsibility to have appropriate grade reports forwarded to the Guidance Office upon completion of the external course.

- 2. Original Credit *To earn credits outside of MHS for academic advancement or meet graduation requirements*:
 - Credits are awarded after the course/program and the respective MHS proficiency assessment have been successfully completed. Successful completion requires the minimum passing grade. Option II courses will only be included on the student's transcript after the course and the assessment are complete.
 - A (P) pass or (F) fail will be recorded on the student's transcript and will not affect G.P.A. If the course is taken at an accredited college or university, a letter grade will be recorded on the student's transcript; this will not be calculated into the G.P.A.
 - A copy of the transcript from the institution where an alternate class was taken must be provided to the Guidance Office and will be sent with the MHS transcript.
- 3. To Meet Grade Prerequisites *To improve grade for the purpose of meeting prerequisites ONLY.*
 - For the purpose of meeting grade prerequisites, the summer school course must be completed and no grade will be recorded on the transcript. A proficiency assessment will be required and the assessment grade will determine placement.

Application for Option II

Montgomery High School students are required to complete an application which must include an attached course syllabus/curriculum. The completed application must be given to the Montgomery High School Guidance Department and approved by the content area supervisor and school principal (or designee) **PRIOR** to enrolling in a course. The course must be offered by an accredited institution and must meet or exceed NJ Core Curriculum Standards. Such courses may not take the place of a course that is a required academic course (i.e. English 9-12, U.S. History I & II, etc.) for graduation; however, it may be taken for advancement (i.e. in math courses) only when approved by the content area supervisor. **Any course taken by an MHS student without the prior approval of administration will NOT be granted course credits.**

Deadlines

For summer courses, Option II applications must be submitted by May 16th and course must be completed by August 8th. For the fall semester, Option II applications must be submitted by September 15th and course must be completed by January 15th. For the spring semester, Option II applications must be submitted by January 12th and the course must be completed by June 1st. For full year courses, Option II applications must be submitted by September 30th and the course must be completed by June 1st.

Any Option II course not completed by the course deadline will not be eligible for course credit.

Proficiency Assessments

Proficiency assessments are used for placement purposes and may also be required for Option II credits to be received. For math courses students must show a minimum proficiency on the designated assessment for the course taken. The grade earned on the assessment will determine placement in the following course or the student's ability to advance to the next course. These assessments will be administered by the MHS department supervisor or designee. These assessments are aligned with NJ Core Curriculum Content Standards. Dates available for proficiency testing are August 7th and August 14th. Students must reserve a date in advance. For other courses students should be prepared to submit a portfolio of work completed, if requested by the department supervisor. A (P) pass or (F) fail will be recorded on the student's transcript *after the course is completed*.

SOMERSET COUNTY VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL SCHOOL – SHARED TIME

The Somerset County Vocational-Technical High School offers a shared-time program for students who want to learn a technical trade but wants to complete their academic requirements in their local high school. Students who select this vocational shared-time option spend a portion of each day at Vocational-Technical High School and the remainder of the day at Montgomery High School. Transportation is provided at no cost both to and from the Vocational School. Upon graduation, students receive a M.H.S. diploma. (See your counselor for a description of the Vocational offerings at Somerset County Vocational-Technical School.)

Students who are interested in attending Somerset County Vocational-Technical High School are to inform their counselor by April of the semester prior to taking courses at Vo-Tech. Students and their families are encouraged to arrange on their own a tour of Somerset County Vocational-Technical High School before requesting to attend.

COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

ENGLISH

11000 English Literature and Composition 9

5 credits

5 credits

This is a comprehensive survey of the elements of literature, language, and composition. The aim of this course is to improve students' control of the skills of communication, reading, writing (narrative writing, argumentative writing) speaking, listening and viewing — and to help them appreciate a wide selection of readings that increase students' understanding and appreciation of literature. Students are expected to write arguments to support claims in an analysis of substantive topics or texts, using valid reasoning and relevant and sufficient evidence (CCSS). Students are expected to write narratives to develop real or imagined experiences or events using effective technique, well-chosen details, and well structured event sequences (CCSS). Additionally, students will conduct short as well as more sustained research projects to answer a question or solve a problem; narrow or broaden the inquiry when appropriate; synthesize multiple sources on the subject, demonstrating understanding of the subject under investigation.

PREREQUISITE: English 8

12000 English Literature and Composition 10

This course continues to explore the elements of literature, language, and composition begun in 9th grade. Examples of the major literary genres are studied along with an emphasis on the development of the expository essay. Students are expected to write arguments to support claims in an analysis of substantive topics or texts, using valid reasoning and relevant and sufficient evidence (CCSS). Students are expected to write narratives to develop real or imagined experiences or events using effective technique, well-chosen details, and well structured event sequences (CCSS). Additionally, students will conduct short as well as more sustained research projects to answer a question or solve a problem; narrow or broaden the inquiry when appropriate; synthesize multiple sources on the subject, demonstrating understanding of the subject under investigation.

PREREQUISITE: English Literature & Composition 9

13000 English Composition and American Literature 11 5 credits

In this year-long study of language, composition, and American Literature, writing and presenting speeches are also required of all students. Other activities such as preparation for standardized tests and career-planning are presented as well.

PREREQUISITE: English Literature & Composition 10

SENIOR CHOICE SEMINARS

Seniors read widely in British and World Literature during the first semester, and they continue to improve skills in reading, writing, listening, viewing, and oral communication. Special attention is given to preparing students for college and for careers. For the second semester, students choose one of two seminars - Selected Shorts or Contemporary Literature as a focus of their study. See descriptions of choice seminars below.

PREREQUISITE: English Composition & American Literature 11

14100 Selected Shorts

5 credits

In this seminar, students explore a wide spectrum of fiction and non-fiction and appreciate for themselves the interplay between form and function that makes literature work its spell. Students examine authors' intentions, readers' responses, and the cultural milieu of the subject of the selected stories. All students in this seminar also concurrently engage in research and composition. Students are expected to use primary and secondary sources as well as literary criticism to compose expository and persuasive/controversial issues research-based papers and speeches.

14200 Contemporary Literature

5 credits

This is a semester long course designed to help students continue to develop their skills as critical readers and writers by actively engaging with texts primarily from the last half century. Students write in a variety of modes of discourse and engage in meaningful research that culminates in a formal presentation.

HONORS COURSE EXPECTATIONS: PLEASE READ CAREFULLY

The AP and Honors courses are designed for students who wish to challenge themselves academically and desire a rigorous study of literature, language and composition. Even though there are no firm prerequisites for admission into, and remaining in, honors courses, it is important to carefully consider a student's past performance in English when selecting an appropriate course of study. AP and Honors courses require students to complete additional coursework, read avidly, and widely, and maintain a higher level of independent accountability than non-weighted courses. The Language Arts department offers assistance in placement decisions through teacher recommendations, diagnostic assessments describing cognitive readiness and core competency review materials. It is recommended that students who wish to challenge themselves at the honors level have earned a 90 or better in the College Prep class taken the year prior. In cases where students select a course level that was not recommended, the student and

parent/guardian will be required to complete a waiver application. It must also be understood that if a student takes an honors English course and decides to drop it, the unweighted grade will transfer to his/her new College Prep class.

11500	English Literature and Composition 9 - Honors	5 credits
12500	English Literature & Composition 10 - Honors	5 credits
13500	English Composition &	
	American Literature 11 - Honors	5 credits
14500	Senior Seminar Contemporary Lit - Honors	5 credits

13900 English 11 AP Language and Composition

5 credits

The AP course in English Language and Composition engages students in becoming skilled readers of prose written in a variety of periods, disciplines, and rhetorical contexts and in becoming skilled writers who compose for a variety of purposes. Selections from American Literature will also be studied. Students in this course will be expected to take the AP Language and Composition examination in May of their junior year.

PREREQUISITE: A final grade of 85% in English Literature & Composition 10 - Honors OR a final grade of 90% in English Literature & Composition 10

14900 English 12 AP Literature and Composition 5 credits

The primary purpose of this course is to train highly motivated students to do college-level work in English. Furthermore, the course is designed to prepare students for the Advanced Placement Examination in English Literature and Composition. The course focuses on critical exposition and analysis of challenging literature from several genres and periods. Students in this course will be expected to take the Advanced Placement English Examination in May of their senior year.

PREREQUISITES: A final grade of 85% in English Composition & American Literature 11-Honors **OR** a final grade of 90% in English Composition & American Literature 11 **OR** English 11 AP Language & Composition

ENGLISH 11 AP to ENGLISH 12 AP: NO PREREQUISITES

15100 Creative Writing Seminar I (s)

2.5 credits

This is a one-semester course in which students explore writing as art. Students will read, analyze, and create works of fiction, non-fiction, drama, and poetry. Throughout the semester, the student will compile a portfolio of

his/her best work. The course culminates in presentations of original manuscripts of poetry, prose, and/or criticism that demonstrate the student's growth. This course provides the time, space, materials, instruction, and skills necessary to pursue meaningful creative writing to fulfill academic and/or intrinsic goals.

PREREQUISITE: Open to students in grades 10, 11 and 12 who have achieved a minimum grade of 75% in the required English program

15200 Creative Writing Seminar II (s) 2.5 credits

In this one-semester course, students further develop as writers do when they read, analyze, and create works of fiction, nonfiction, poetry and drama. In Creative Writing II, students are required to design a focus or theme for their portfolios and submit their work to various publications. Taking both Creative Writing I and Creative Writing II during the same year is recommended but not required.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Creative Writing I

18100 Expository Writing Workshop (Semester 1) 2.5 credits 18200 Expository Writing Workshop (Semester 2) 2.5 credits

The purpose of this one-semester course is to provide an intensive writing experience in a workshop environment. The emphasis will be on expository writing including essays, research reports, and transactional writing. Students will receive instruction in the forms and conventions of expository writing and will use the writing process to create fully revised and edited products. Types of writing to be explored will include narrative, descriptive and persuasive. Assessment will be based on, but not limited to rubrics adapted from the PARCC/Common Core State Standards Scoring Rubric.

PREREQUISITE: None

SOCIAL STUDIES

21000 World Studies

5 credits

The World Studies course is a full-year course intended for all freshmen. It will fulfill the New Jersey graduation requirement of a one-year study of World History. The course begins with the Italian Renaissance and concludes with an overview of the issues of the $21^{\rm st}$ century.

PREREQUISITE: None

21500 World Studies Honors *

5 credits

The World Studies Honors course is a full-year course intended for freshmen who want to challenge themselves and explore the course curriculum in more depth. This course will stress critical reading, writing and thinking and encourage students to develop further as independent learners. It will fulfill the New Jersey graduation requirement of a one-year study of World History. The course begins with the Italian Renaissance and concludes with an overview of the issues of the 21st century.

PREREQUISITE: An average of 90% in both 8th grade Language Arts & Social Studies

* WORLD STUDIES HONORS/HONORS COURSE EXPECTATIONS: <u>PLEASE READ CAREFULLY</u>

The AP and Honors courses are designed for students who wish to challenge themselves academically and desire a rigorous course of study. It is important to carefully consider a student's past performance in Social Studies when selecting an appropriate course of study. AP and Honors courses require students to complete additional coursework, read avidly, and widely, and maintain a higher level of independent accountability than nonweighted courses. The Social Studies department offers assistance in placement decisions through teacher recommendations, diagnostic assessments describing cognitive readiness and core competency review materials. It is recommended that students who wish to challenge themselves at the honors level have earned a 90 or better in the College Prep class taken the year prior. In cases where students select a course level that was not recommended, the student and parent/guardian will be required to complete a waiver application. It must also be understood that if a student takes an honors Social Studies course and decides to drop it, the unweighted grade will transfer to his/her new College Prep class.

22000 U.S. History I

5 credits

This is the first course of a two-year sequence that meets the state and local requirements for graduation. Through extensive use of primary source material this course investigates the American experience from Colonization to the early 20th Century. Featured events include the Foundations and Development of our Nation, the Civil War, the Industrial Revolution and the Progressive Era.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of World Studies

23000 U.S. History II

5 credits

This is the second course of a two year sequence that meets the state and local requirements for graduation. Through extensive use of primary source material this course investigates the American experience during the past century. Featured events include World War I, World War II, the Vietnam and Persian Gulf Wars, the Civil and Women's Rights Movement and trends in popular culture. Students also focus on post WW II presidents and events to gain an understanding of present day issues.

PREREOUISITE: Successful completion of U.S. History I

23500 U.S. History: 1989 to the Present Honors

5 credits

This year long honors elective course will examine American foreign and domestic policy since 1989, as well as both judicial and legislative powers and the decisions that have been rendered in that time frame. Through research, primary sources, guest speakers, discussion, debates and presentations, students will discover how and why policy decisions are made and attempt to analyze their global impact. In reviewing the policies, students will have to analyze the plethora of variables that have assisted in shaping the nation as a consequence of the decisions that have been made. Students additionally will focus on the role of leadership in Modern America, with a focus on current American concerns.

PREREQUISITE: Students must have completed the two-year U.S. History requirement with a minimum grade of 85% in U.S. II or an 80% in AP USII.

22900 AP U.S. History I (part 1 of 2)

5 credits

This course is a study of the American experience from colonial times through the Age of Industry and serves as a preparation for the more rigorous AP US History II class. Students will be introduced to the application of higher level analytical skills in both written expression and class discussion/debate. Students with a passion for American history and written analysis are encouraged to take the course. The course meets one of the two years of U.S. History required by the state for graduation.

PREREQUISITE: Students must meet the following minimum requirements: 1. 90% in World Studies or 85% in World Studies Honors 2. 85% in English Literature and Composition 9 Honors **OR** 90% in English Literature and Composition 9

23900 AP U.S. History II (part 2 of 2)

This course serves as the second year of the program with a focus on the American experience from the Age of the City through the modern era and is conducted in a similar fashion to a college seminar class. Students enrolled in the course are expected to use the analytical skills learned in part I and apply them to a greater degree and intensity in part II including extensive discussion and debate skills. All of this serves as preparation for taking the AP US History Exam in May along with additional AP/honors courses in the senior year and beyond.

PREREQUISITE: A final grade of 70% or better in AP U.S. History I (part I)

24900 AP Government and Politics

5 credits

5 credits

By utilizing student-centered discussions, debates, and cooperative learning activities, this college level year-long course teaches students to think critically about the government and politics of the United States in preparation for the AP exam. Current political events and other provocative topics are explored through research, analytical writing, and discussions. This course strives to demystify the institutions of Congress, the White House and the Supreme Court; to examine civil liberties, civil rights, campaigns, and elections; and to explore a variety of public policies.

PREREQUISITE: This course is an elective open to students in grades 11 and 12 who have earned an 85% or higher in their most recent (US I or US II) History course **OR** 80% or higher in their most recent AP US History course

25900 AP Art History

5 credits

Beginning with ancient civilizations and ending with contemporary modern art, this course seeks to enrich and broaden students' worldviews while preparing them for the AP exam. Through PowerPoint presentations, readings, and discussions, students will study hundreds of works of art and architecture, delving into the lives of the artists and the cultural context in which they worked, including many major religious and philosophical movements throughout the centuries. Students will be required to utilize critical thinking and analytical writing skills throughout the year on essays and class discussion, as well as on realistic tests based on past AP exams.

PREREQUISITE: This course is an elective open to students in grades 11 and 12 who have earned an 85% or higher in their most recent (US I or US II) history course **OR** 80% or higher in their most recent AP US History course

26900 AP Economics 5 credits

The purpose of the AP economics course is to provide students with a thorough understanding of the principles and applications of microeconomics and macroeconomics. This rigorous college level class will examine topics including (but not limited to): scarcity, cost, marginal analysis, supply and demand, the operations of free markets, externalities, distribution of income, government fiscal and monetary policy, aggregate analysis, the Federal Reserve System, inflation and unemployment, game theory, international trade and the U.S. and world economies. Students taking this course will be prepared for the national AP Microeconomics and Macroeconomics Exams.

PREREQUISITE: This course is an elective open to students in grades 11 and 12 who have earned an 85% or higher in their most recent (US I or US II) History course OR 80% or higher in their most recent AP US History course as well as an 85% in Algebra II or successful completion of Algebra II honors. It fulfills the graduation requirement for "financial literacy."

27100 Sociology (s) 2.5 credits

Sociology is the scientific study of society, social institutions, social relationships, and human group behavior. Sociology looks at how groups, societies and social conditions shape the way people act. It examines both people's and groups' personalities and the environment in which situations occur. This course is offered to students in grades 11 and 12. It is designed to give students an opportunity to explore their own behavior in groups, and study topics that directly affect them in the real world. Some of the topics studied are groups, group behavior, socialization through the stages of life (infancy, childhood, adolescence, adulthood, and old age), human and group behavior, social norms, morals and values, gender differences, marriage and divorce, cult behavior, and violence in society. The students will participate in an active learning environment that enables them to apply their life experiences to the topics of study. Sociology is a fun and active course that is extremely beneficial to the social development of students.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 11 and 12

27200 Elements of Human Behavior (s)

2.5 credits

Elements of Human Behavior, is a semester course offered to students in grades 11 and 12. The course is designed to give students an opportunity to explore many interesting topics in an active learning environment. Some of the topics studied include different approaches to psychology, emotion, personality, motivation, memory, sensation and perception, psychological research, stress, and mental disorders. The students will participate in discussions and experiments testing popular theories and applying these theories to real life experiences. Elements of Human Behavior, is a fun and active course that is extremely beneficial to the social development of students.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 11 and 12

27300 Crime and Punishment (s)

2.5 credits

Crime and Punishment provides a comprehensive overview of the American justice system covering criminal law, procedure and criminology. Students will actively participate in such topics as: current crime issues, gangs, organized crime, police conduct, courts and case process, prison life, juvenile delinquency and much more. Activities will include field trips, guest speakers, debates, and round-table discussions. Students will explore how crime and punishment impacts their lives. This course will also expose students to various careers related to criminal justice.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 11 and 12

27400 American Film and Culture (s)

2.5 credits

American Film and Culture offers students of all academic levels an alternative way to view how and why America changed during the 20^{th} century. The films selected for this course will be chosen for their specific messages, which typified the decade in which they were made. Through film analysis, students will gain new insight into the social climate that existed during historical events of the 20^{th} century.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 10, 11 and 12

MATHEMATICS

Math Prerequisites

Montgomery Township School District is committed to providing a solid foundation for its students in the area of mathematics. Because math skills are sequential, it is essential that prerequisite skills be mastered before complex courses are taken. The prerequisites are firmly based on the proficiency a student demonstrates over the entire year of work in mathematics preceding each course.

The Mathematics Proficiency Tests

The Mathematics Proficiency Tests are used to assess the proficiency of students at various stages in their mathematical education. These tests reflect questions given on Chapter/Unit tests, Midterm Exams, and/or Final Exams for the various courses offered by the department. The following students **must participate** in the testing process:

- New students who have met the honors course requirements in another school and who wish to continue in honors at MHS
- New students whose placement needs to be determined
- Students who wish to advance by means of an approved summer or online external course

Please note that summer and online courses traditionally do not cover the curriculum in as much depth as a full-year course. Therefore, summer or online courses are good for enrichment or review; they are not recommended to be used as a replacement for a full year math course.

30100 Math Connections 1 - NJASK 8 (s)

2.5 credits

This course is required of freshman who scored below proficient on the math section of NJASK8 as an eighth grader. The focus of this course is to enable students to fulfill the state requirement of targeted intervention in math to help them accelerate their learning. The content clusters covered in this course are: 1) Number and Numerical Operations, 2) Geometry and Measurement, 3) Patterns and Algebra, 4) Data Analysis, Probability and Discrete Mathematics, and 5) Problem Solving. Skills and strategies for standardized test taking are developed. Problem solving with mathematical concepts is practiced.

30400 Math Connections IV - Part 1

Alternative High School Assessment (AHSA) 2.5 credits

This course is required of seniors who did not pass the math section of HSPA as a junior. The focus of this course is to prepare the students for the October retest. After the retest, the course will continue to reinforce elementary skills and applications of numerical operations on whole numbers, fractions, decimals and percents. It is designed to help students develop proficiency in the HSPA clusters: 1) Number Sense, Concepts & Applications, 2) Spatial Sense & Geometry, 3) Data Analysis, Probability, Statistics, & Discrete Math, and 4) Patterns, Functions, & Algebra. The application of mathematical concepts through problem solving will be emphasized and the techniques necessary to answer open – ended questions in mathematics will be studied. Development of skills and strategies for the HSPA will be the primary aim of the course. Calculators will be used as a tool to help students develop confidence in problem solving.

30500 Math Connections IV- Part 2

Alternative High School Assessment (AHSA) 2.5 credits

This course is required of seniors who did not pass the math section of HSPA as a junior. The focus of this course is to enable students to fulfill the New Jersey state requirement in math for graduation by completing Performance Assessment Tasks on each of the four HSPA math clusters. After successful completion of AHSA, course emphasis will be on applying everyday math to real life situations by studying financial algebra in banking and independent living. A scientific calculator is required.

32000 Elements of Geometry

5 credits

This course is offered as the second year course in a three-year sequence that provides students with a modified version of the traditional Algebra I, Geometry, and Algebra II course sequence. The essential elements and

topics of plane and coordinate geometry are introduced. Students are given the opportunity to develop the use of spatial visualization along with strengthening and expanding basic algebraic skills as they apply to geometric relationships. Students are exposed to problem solving situations that require both formal and informal reasoning. They are given the opportunity to visualize, analyze, and make conjectures about geometric objects in order to better understand the relationships that exist within them. Emphasis is placed on developing an understanding of logic through investigations and applications of appropriate reasoning techniques. The concepts and skills developed are consistent with the traditional Geometry program but less emphasis is placed on rigorous proof. A scientific calculator is required

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Algebra I

33000 Elements of Algebra II

5 credits

This course is offered as the third year course in a three-year sequence that provides students with a modified version of the traditional Algebra I, Geometry, and Algebra II course sequence. The course reviews basic terminology, concepts, skills and applications of Algebra I by critical examination of the real number system. It furthers the development of algebraic concepts including absolute value, inequalities, and linear equations. This course introduces students to factoring; simplifying and solving rational expressions and equations; powers, roots, and radicals; sequences and series; and techniques for graphing non-linear functions. Throughout the course, students use technology as a tool for processing data, performing calculations, and exploring concepts. A graphing calculator is required.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Elements of Geometry or Geometry

34000 Elements of Advanced Algebra and Trigonometry 5 credits

This course is offered as the fourth year course in a four-year sequence that provides students with a modified version of the traditional Algebra I, Geometry, Algebra II, and Advanced Algebra / Trigonometry course sequence. The first part of the course strengthens Algebra skills and concepts. Emphasis is on solving equations and problem solving. Functions studied include polynomial, rational, and exponential. The second half of the year includes a modified course in Trigonometry. A graphing calculator is required.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Elements of Algebra II or Algebra II

31250 Algebra I with Lab

6 credits

5 credits

Algebra I is the first course in the college preparatory program in mathematics. This course differs from the Algebra I non Lab class by providing a half of block more time devoted to Function comprehension, number properties and Linear Equations. It then completes the development and understanding of the real number system and the basic structure of Algebra. Logical problem solving, deductive reasoning and precise communication of mathematical ideas are expanded upon as per the Common Core Standards. A scientific calculator is required.

PREREQUISITE: Successful competition of Pre-Algebra

31200 Algebra I

Algebra I is the first course in the college preparatory program in mathematics. Emphasis is placed upon the development and understanding of the real number system and the basic structure of Algebra. Also, the course helps students develop an appreciation for logical problem-solving and deductive reasoning as well as precision in the communication of mathematical ideas. A scientific calculator is required.

PREREQUISITE: Successful competition of Algebra I, Part 1

32200 Geometry 5 credits

Geometry combines the essential elements of plane geometry and the basics of solid geometry. Strong emphasis is placed on deductive reasoning and writing original proofs. In addition, the student is given the opportunity to develop powers of spatial visualization, strengthen basic algebraic skills, and learn to use precise and clear mathematical language. A strong background in Algebra I is required from the beginning of the course. A scientific calculator is required.

PREREQUISITE: 70% in Algebra I taken over a school year

32500 Geometry Honors

5 credits

This course is designed for students who want a more challenging approach to geometry and who plan on taking additional mathematics courses in college. It combines the essential elements of plane geometry and the basics of solid geometry. Strong emphasis is placed on deductive reasoning and solving complex original proofs. Additional topics include introductory trigonometry, coordinate geometry and transformations. A strong background in Honors Algebra I will be required from the beginning of the course, and students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in

course, and students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in class, as well as to transfer them to novel applications and problem solving situations. A scientific calculator is required.

PREREQUISITE: 85% in Algebra I Honors or 95% in Algebra I taken over a school year

33200 Algebra II 5 credits

Algebra II is the third course in the regular college preparatory program in mathematics. The course reviews basic terminology, concepts, skills, and applications of Algebra I by means of a critical examination of the real number system. Algebra II furthers the development of working with absolute value, inequalities, linear equations, and systems of equations and inequalities, all topics introduced in the first level of Algebra. Major topics are then covered that expand the students' knowledge of Algebra and prepare them for higher level mathematics courses that include: simplifying and solving rational expressions and equations; solving and graphing polynomial functions; working with powers, roots, and radicals; and graphing second degree equations. Throughout the course, students use scientific and graphing calculators as a tool for processing data, performing calculations, and exploring. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 70% in Geometry or 90% in Elements of Geometry

33500 Algebra II Honors

5 credits

Algebra II Honors is designed for students who want a more challenging approach to Algebra II and who plan on taking additional honors mathematics courses in the future. The students study the structure of the real and complex number systems, develop the concept of linear functions and relations, inequalities, systems of equations in two and three variables, determinants, polynomial equations and functions, rational expressions, conic sections, sequences and series, exponential equations and logarithms. A strong background in Honors Algebra I and Honors Geometry will be required from the beginning of the course, and students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in class, as well as to transfer them to novel applications and problem solving situations. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 85% in Geometry-Honors or 95% in Geometry AND 85% in Algebra I-Honors or 95% in Algebra I

34200 Advanced Algebra and Trigonometry 5 credits

This course is designed for those students pursuing a four-year college program, but who are not proficient in Algebra II CP. The first part of this course further develops Algebra II skills and concepts. Emphasis is on problem solving. Functions studied include polynomial, rational,

exponential, and logarithmic. The second half of the year includes a complete course in Trigonometry. A working knowledge of College Prep level Algebra II is required from the beginning of the course. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 90% in Elements of Algebra II or 70% in Algebra II

35000 Precalculus 5 credits

This college preparatory course covers all the fundamental topics that prepare students for calculus. Emphasis is on problem solving and the study of relations, functions, equation solving, and graphing. The functions studied include polynomial, conics, rational, exponential, logarithmic, trigonometric, and inverse functions. Upon entering this course, students must have a strong working knowledge of the mechanics of Algebra II, and be able to grasp the more theoretical concepts that form the foundation for calculus. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 80% in Algebra II or 75% in Advanced Algebra and Trigonometry or 70% in Algebra II-Honors

35500 Precalculus Honors 5 credits

This course is a full year Precalculus course, which presents an in-depth examination of analytic trigonometry, trigonometric functions, exponential and logarithmic functions, polynomial and rational functions, and introduction to limits. The intent is to study and apply advanced mathematical topics while developing the student's abstract and critical thinking skills. A strong background in Honors Algebra II will be required from the beginning of the course, and students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in class, as well as to transfer them to novel applications and problem solving situations. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 85% in Algebra II-Honors or 95% in Algebra II

36000 Calculus 5 credits

The college prep level calculus course provides students with an opportunity to develop a conceptual understanding of calculus and its applications. The course emphasizes a multi-representational approach to calculus with concepts, results, and problems being expressed geometrically, analytically, verbally and numerically. The unifying themes of the course are limits, differentiation, integration and real world applications of these concepts. Graphing calculators and other technology are used to reinforce mathematical relationships, to confirm written work, to implement experimentation, and to assist in interpreting results. A strong background

in Precalculus topics will be required from the beginning of the course. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 80% in Precalculus or completion of Precalculus-Honors

36910 AP Calculus-AB 5 credits

This course is essentially Calculus Advanced Placement AB as described in the course outline published by the College Entrance Examination Board. It covers limits, derivatives, and applications of both algebraic and transcendental functions as well as methods and applications of integration. The approach used is that of combining the essentials of the theory with practical applications. A strong background in Honors Precalculus will be required from the beginning of the course, and students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in class, as well as to transfer them to novel applications and problem solving situations. This course is equivalent to a 1st semester college calculus course. Graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 85% in Precalculus-Honors or 95% in Precalculus **OR** 80% in Calculus taken over a full school year

36920 AP Calculus C 5 credits

Taught as a continuation of Calculus AB, this course covers additional techniques of integration, polar coordinates, series, applications of integrals, parametric graphing and differential equations. The emphasis is on theory and problem-solving techniques. A strong background in AP Calculus AB will be required from the beginning of the course, and students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in class, as well as to transfer them to novel applications and problem solving situations. This course is equivalent to a 2nd semester college calculus course. Graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 80% in AP Calculus-AB, taken over a full school year

36930 AP Calculus BC 5 credits

This course is essentially the College Board Calculus BC Curriculum. Students will master material covering two semesters of a college calculus program. Students selected to take this course may elect to take an AP test in math with the possibility of earning one or two semesters' credit at colleges and universities that participate in the College Board program. The course outline is the combination of the Calculus AB description and Calculus C listed above. Students will be expected to understand the concepts taught in class as well as transfer them to novel application and problem solving situations. Graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: An Honors PreCalculus full year average of a high A and teacher recommendation.

38000 Discrete Mathematics 5 credits

Discrete mathematics addresses topics not covered or addressed only lightly in traditional math courses. It is an introduction into areas of mathematics that most students have never thought of before. In this course, the topics have a step-by-step nature rather than a continuous one. This course stresses the connection between contemporary math and the modern society. Students are exposed to problem solving experiences in some or all of the following areas: decision-making in a democracy (election theory), graphs and graph theory (networking), coding information, logic and probability, game theory, and mathematical induction. These topics are often found in a standard mathematics course at the college level for the non-mathematics majors. A course in discrete mathematics is also effective preparation for applied combinatorics and graph theory courses offered as electives for mathematics and science majors at the college level. A working knowledge of Algebra II will be required from the beginning of this course. Graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Algebra II or Elements of Algebra II

37000 Statistics 5 credits

This course is an introductory, non-calculus based study of statistics designed as an elective math course for Juniors and Seniors only. Students are introduced to major concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing, and drawing conclusions from data. Students are exposed to four broad conceptual themes: Exploring Data, Planning a Study, Anticipating Patterns, and Statistical Inferences. This course would prepare students for AP Statistics or the college course equivalent. A good working knowledge of Algebra II will be required from the beginning of the course. Graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: 80% in Elements of Algebra II or 70% in Algebra II **OR** 70% in Elements of Advanced Algebra/Trigonometry

37900 AP Statistics 5 credits

AP Statistics is an Advanced Placement course, which is equivalent to a one-semester introductory, non-calculus based college course in statistics. It is an elective math course for Juniors and Seniors only. It introduces students to the major concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing, and drawing conclusions from data. Students are exposed to four broad

conceptual themes: Exploring Data, Planning a Study, Anticipating Patterns, and Statistical Inferences. A strong background in Algebra II will be required from the beginning of the course. Students will be expected to understand concepts taught in class, and also to evaluate, synthesize and apply them to new applications and problem solving situations as preparation for the AP exam administered by CollegeBoard. Scientific and graphing calculators are required.

PREREQUISITE: Statistics or 80% in Precalculus or 80% in Algebra II Honors or 90% in Algebra II.

39500 Honors Math Methods in Engineering and the Sciences

5 credits

This course has been designed for the student who is interested in pursuing mathematics at the college level. It will offer a survey of topics that would be covered in four different college courses but in a smaller scope with more emphasis on applications. The first topic, Linear Algebra, will introduce and explore coordinate systems, graphs in three dimensions, vectors, matrices, diagonalization, eigenvectors and basis sets. The second topic, Multivariable Calculus, will explore partial derivatives, vector operators, gradients, and double integral. Differential Equations will explore methods, survey physics equations, functions as basis sets, and calculus of variations. Fourier Analysis will introduce frequency analysis, Fourier Series, Fourier Transforms, Discrete Fourier Transforms, signal processing and Fast Fourier Transforms.

PREREQUISITE: 80% in AP Calculus C or 80% in AP Calculus BC

SCIENCE

Three core science courses are required for graduation. The normal sequence is Physics, Chemistry, and Biology. A student may replace one of these courses with the corresponding advanced placement course, though it is normally recommended that students take AP courses as their second course in the subject of interest.

** It is important to carefully consider a student's past performance in science and mathematics when selecting an appropriate course of study. AP and Honors courses require students to complete additional coursework, utilize advanced mathematical expertise, and maintain a higher level of independent accountability than non-weighted courses. The MHS Science program does not maintain any minimum grade prerequisites for entrance into various course levels. The Department offers assistance in placement decisions through recommendations, diagnostic assessments describing cognitive readiness and core competency review materials. In cases where students select course level that was not recommended, the student and parent/guardian will be required to complete a waiver application.

41000 General Physics

5 credits

Physics is a college preparatory laboratory science course emphasizing concepts and skills essential to a high school physics course. Topics covered may include density, motion, power, energy, simple machines, sound, light, electricity, magnetism and astronomy. The course is designed so that it will be of value to students planning to pursue a technical or non-technical course of study. Concepts will be organized around essential projects, foundational physical models, and basic laboratory skills that will include measurement and graphing and grade level appropriate algebra skills. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop scientific reasoning skills. Permission to enroll in this course will be coordinated through the student's school counselor, current science instructor and the MHS Science Supervisor.

41200 Physics 5 credits

Physics is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed for students in the ninth grade who seek a conceptual understanding and skills in physics. This course will incorporate basic mathematical applications, relying on multiple representations to describe the physical world. Students will be expected to utilize basic arithmetic, proportional reasoning, graphing

and algebra to represent physical situations mathematically. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. This physics course will initiate a theme of energy that will continue in chemistry, followed by biology. This course is open to all students.

41500 Physics Honors

5 credits

Physics Honors is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed for students in the ninth grade who seek a conceptual understanding and skills in Physics. This course will incorporate advanced mathematical applications (extensive algebra and introductory trigonometry), relying on multiple representations to describe the physical world, making use of more extensive algebraic representations. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. This physics course will initiate a theme of energy that will continue in chemistry, followed by biology. Due to the increased level of mathematical complexity, additional topics in kinematics and reduction of in-class guided practice, this course receives honor's weighted credit. A diagnostic assessment and advanced preparation assignment will be provided to students electing to enroll in this course. It is highly recommended that students have demonstrated aptitude in proportional reasoning and algebra before enrolling in this course.

41920 AP Physics C:

Mechanics and Electricity & Magnetism

5 credits

AP Physics C is a laboratory science course that forms the first part of a college sequence serving as the foundation in physics for students majoring in the physical sciences or engineering. Methods of calculus are used wherever appropriate in formulating physical principles and in applying them to physical problems. The course is designed for students preparing to study the sciences in a post-secondary setting, especially engineering and physical science majors. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards are addressed. Due to the increased level of mathematical complexity, additional topics in kinematics, and reduction of in-class guided practice, this course receives honor's weighted credit. This course is designed to prepare students to take both the AP Physics C: Mechanics exam and AP Physics C: Electricity and Magnetism Exam. A previous physics course is recommended, but not required.

*The course instructor may require a summer assignment to be completed prior to the start of the course (please reference the MHS Science Department website to obtain the summer assignment after July 1st for updated summer assignments).

42000 General Chemistry

5 credits

In Chemistry the basic concepts are developed using student discourse and laboratory activities in preparation for college level science studies. Less emphasis is placed on mathematical formulas and equations and more emphasis on conceptual chemistry. The goals of this course are to help students develop an understanding of chemistry, cultivate problem solving and critical thinking skill, apply chemistry knowledge to decision making about scientific and technological issues, recognize the importance of chemistry in daily life, and understand benefits as well as limitations of science and technology. This course will build upon the theme of energy developed in physics, continuing in biology. The appropriate NJ State and national Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. Enrollment in Chemistry is limited, optimizing the student to instructor ratio. Permission to enroll in this course will be coordinated through the student's school counselor, current science instructor and the MHS Science Supervisor.

42200 Chemistry 5 credits

Chemistry is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed as a student's second high school science course. This course will apply basic mathematical equations and skills such as making and interpreting graphs, using exponents, significant figures, scientific notation and algebraic ratios to describe the physical world. A math review packet is available to students the summer before the start of the course. The math material addresses expectations from prior coursework and therefore limited class time will be devoted to this material. The concepts will be assessed on or after the 5th class session. A study of the structure of the atom and the periodic law leads to an understanding of the organization of the periodic table. This knowledge is used to develop concepts of bonding among atoms as well as writing chemical formulas and equations to quantitatively represent chemical reactions. Students are introduced to gas laws, states of matter, solutions, acid-base chemistry and the role of energy in chemistry. Through hands-on laboratory exercises, detailed observations, critical thinking and articulation students are guided to a deeper understanding of matter on an atomic level. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed to raise the level of student discourse and develop scientific reasoning skills. This chemistry course will build upon the theme of energy developed in physics, continuing into biology. This course is open to all students.

42500 Chemistry Honors

5 credits

Chemistry Honors is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed for students who seek a conceptual understanding in chemistry and training in 21st century skills. The goal of the course is to develop a coherent description of matter at the particle level based on observable evidence collected through experimentation and real world experiences. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. This chemistry course will build upon the theme of energy developed in physics, continuing into biology. This course will require fundamental understanding of comparison by ratios, proportionality, percentage, scientific notation, operation of exponents, metric conversions and drawing and interpretation of graphs. Students should demonstrate mastery of basic atomic structure, density, measurement, graphing and physical properties prior to enrolling in this course. A summer review packet, detailing the core competencies students should possess prior to the course, will be provided online and these concepts and skills will be assessed within the first two weeks of the course. Students enrolled in this course will be expected to have ability to work independently, drawing on prior chemistry knowledge, as well as collaboratively. Due to the higher level of critical thinking, and articulation required, this rigorous course receives honor's weighted credit. This course is open to all students. A diagnostic assessment and advanced preparation assignment may be provided to the students electing to enroll in this course.

42900 AP Chemistry

5 credits

AP Chemistry is a laboratory science course that provides an in-depth study of chemistry. It is designed as a first year college course in chemistry for science majors. The topics covered in the course include: the structure and states of matter, chemical reactions, kinetics, equilibrium, thermodynamics, electrochemistry and descriptive chemistry. Laboratory work emphasizes experiments involving major chemistry concepts and skills, and the subsequent analysis of data and the interpretation and communication of experimental results. The appropriate NJ State and National standards are addressed. This chemistry course will build upon the theme of energy developed in physics, continuing into biology. Due to the increased level of mathematical complexity, additional topics in kinetics, redox reactions, and organic chemistry, and reduction of in-class guided practice, this course receives honor's weighted credit. A diagnostic assessment and advanced preparation assignment may be provided to students electing to enroll in this course. This course is designed to prepare students to take the AP Chemistry

exam. This course is open to all students. A previous chemistry course is recommended, but not required. This course will require fundamental understanding of comparison by ratios, proportionality, percentage, scientific notation, operation of exponents, metric conversions and drawing and interpretation of graphs. Students should demonstrate mastery of basic atomic structure, density, measurement, graphing and physical properties prior to enrolling in this course on an assessment administered during the first 2 weeks of the class. *The course instructor may require a summer assignment to be completed prior to the start of the course (please reference the MHS Science Department website to obtain the summer assignment after July 1st for updated summer assignments).

43000 General Biology

5 credits

Biology is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed for students in the eleventh grade to gain conceptual understandings and skills in biology. The course will build upon a student's prior knowledge of physics and chemistry principles as they make connections between the concepts of biology and their everyday world. Students are introduced to biological topics including: the unity and diversity of life, the relationship between form and function within organisms, biochemical processes, genetics, evolution, the interdependence and relationships in ecosystems, classification, and applications in biotechnology through biology simulations, readings, and laboratory activities. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. completing this biology course will be prepared and required to take the New Jersey Biology Competency Test (NJBCT). Permission to enroll in this course will be coordinated through the student's school counselor, current science instructor and the MHS Science Supervisor.

43200 Biology 5 credits

Biology is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed for students in the eleventh grade to gain conceptual understandings and skills in biology. The course will build upon a student's prior knowledge of physics and chemistry principles as they make connections between the concepts of biology and their everyday world. Students are introduced to biological topics including: the unity and diversity of life, the relationship between form and function within organisms, biochemical processes, genetics, evolution, the interdependence and relationships in ecosystems, classification, and applications in biotechnology through biology simulations, readings, and laboratory activities. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student

discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. Students completing this biology course will be prepared and required to take the New Jersey Biology Competency Test (NJBCT).

43500 Biology Honors

5 credits

Biology Honors is a college preparatory, laboratory science course designed for students in the eleventh grade to gain conceptual understandings and skills in biology. This biology course will continue with the themes developed in chemistry and physics including energy transfer and transformation. Students are introduced to biological topics including: the unity and diversity of life, the relationship between form and function within organisms, biochemical processes, genetics, evolution, the interdependence and relationships in ecosystems, classification, and applications in biotechnology through biology simulations and inquiry-based laboratory This course will incorporate probability and mathematical modeling, relying on multiple representations to describe the physical world. It includes more extensive analytical lab, reading and writing assignments than the college prep biology course. Course assessments will require a sophisticated analysis of the concepts and focus on application of the core ideas. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed so as to raise the level of student discourse and develop essential scientific reasoning skills. Students completing this biology course will be prepared and required to take the New Jersey Biology Competency Test (NJBCT). This course covers the same topics as the college preparatory course, but with more depth and additional math; this course receives honor's weighted credit. This course is open to all students. It is highly recommended that students successfully complete either Advanced Chemistry Honors or demonstrate a superior understanding of College Preparatory Chemistry prior to enrolling in this course.

43900 AP Biology

5 credits

AP Biology is a laboratory science course that provides an in-depth study of living systems. It is designed as a first year college course in biology for science majors. The course represents a comprehensive survey of general biology that includes biochemistry, cellular biology, molecular genetics and heredity, biotechnology, diversity, structure and function of organisms, ecology and evolution. Given that this course is the equivalent of a college level course, extensive comprehension and understanding of concepts will be required on the part of the student. This biology course will continue to build on chemistry and physics concepts. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards will be addressed. Students

completing this biology course will be prepared and required to take the NJ End-of-Course Assessment in Biology (students having already passed the NJ EOC Biology Assessment do not have to take the exam again). Due to the increased level of mathematical complexity, additional topics in biochemistry, genetics, evolution and reduction of in-class guided practice, this course receives honor's weighted credit. This course is open to all students. This course is designed to prepare students to take the AP Biology exam. It is highly recommended that students considering AP Biology have taken and successfully completed a previous biology course (i.e Advanced Biology Honors or College Preparatory Biology). Students who wish to take this course without having taking biology before are recommended to have successfully completed either AP Chemistry or Advanced Chemistry Honors. Many introductory chemistry concepts are considered prerequisite knowledge according to the College Board.

*The course instructor may require a summer assignment to be completed prior to the start of the course (please reference the MHS Science Department website to obtain the summer assignment after July 1st for updated summer assignments).

44000 Environmental Science

5 credits

This course addresses local and global environmental quality issues (air, land & water), alternative energy sources, components of ecology, natural resources, land use, populations, pest control, agriculture, and industrial and Emphasis is placed on awareness of the critical domestic wastes. environmental issues that influence the world on the individual, local, and global levels. This capstone course will incorporate a student's prior knowledge of physics, chemistry, and biology principles as well as socioeconomics and politics. Classes include inquiry-based activities, simulations, discussions, research projects and community improvement assignments. Students are expected to work independently and with other students in class. Students will be required to read both non-fiction and fiction on a variety of environmental topics and be expected to critique and constructively respond to such readings. The appropriate NJ State and National Standards are addressed. It is highly recommended that students have successfully completed three prior years of science courses as well as have good comprehension skills.

44900 AP Environmental Science

5 credits

AP Environmental Science is a full year capstone, laboratory science course designed to incorporate prior biology, chemistry and physics knowledge as it relates to environmental studies. Topics will include the study of the interrelationships of the natural world, the identification and analysis of

complex environmental problems, earth systems and resources, the living world, populations, land and water use, energy resources and consumption, pollution, and global change. Students will be expected to critically analyze social, cultural and political influences on environmental problems in order to become better global thinkers. Strong mathematical skills are highly recommended as the mathematical complexity of the course is great. As a college-level equivalent course, students will be expected to work independently and collaboratively. Class time will include practical laboratory experiments, requiring students to complete formal lab reports and review concepts outside of regular class sessions. All students will be expected to complete necessary coursework in preparation for the AP Environmental Science Exam. As a result of the increased level of mathematical complexity, incorporation of previous course work in physics,

mathematical complexity, incorporation of previous course work in physics, chemistry and biology, and reduction in-class guided practice this course receives honor's weighted credit.

*The course instructor may require a summer assignment to be completed prior to the start of the course (please reference the MHS Science Department website to obtain the summer assignment after July 1st for updated summer assignments). Students enrolling in this course must have completed physics, chemistry, and biology. This course may be taken concurrent with biology.

45000 iStem – Advanced Scientific Investigations 5 credits

iSTEM – Advanced Scientific Investigations is a multidisciplinary course open to students who have completed physics, chemistry and biology (biology may be taken concurrently). Students will explore the connections between Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics through individual inquiry and small group research collaborations. Students will design experiments, gain proficiency with scientific technology, and prepare for local, regional and national science challenge events. The course topics will vary year-to-year and may include optics, electricity and magnetism, green technology, biotechnology and horticulture. The course will make extensive use of computer, digital and engineering instrumentation. Students will be expected to conduct independent and collaborative research, provide and receive critical feedback from peers, instructional staff, and scientists working in applicable field of studies. Students will present a capstone project in a science conference poster presentation format. iSTEM – Advanced Scientific Investigations is open to all students having completed the requisite courses. Students enrolling in the course may be required to complete a summer assignment prior to the start of the school year. Students who are involved in scientific research during the

summer may be eligible to include and continue project work in fulfillment of course requirements.

*The course instructor may require a summer assignment to be completed prior to the start of the course (please reference the MHS Science Department website to obtain the summer assignment after July 1st for updated summer assignments).

WORLD LANGUAGES

Students learn to communicate in a language other than English and understand the perspectives of its cultures. Since the program is designed to build language proficiency through a sequence of courses, we strongly encourage students to complete as many years of a language sequence as possible, and to take the opportunity to study more than one language. A six-year sequential program of world language study (starting in grade 7) is offered in French, German, and Spanish; a four-year sequential program is offered in Latin and Mandarin Chinese (starting in grade 9)

Students wishing to study a language with which they have extensive experience in an immersion setting, or of which they are a native or heritage speaker, **must be evaluated** to determine appropriate placement. All students new to Montgomery High School will have a placement evaluation prior to registering for a language course. The department supervisor determines final placement based on the results of the evaluation. Since the level of language proficiency gained depends on the time spent in meaningful communication, teachers provide instruction in the target language. They support students in their efforts to use the language actively, and they evaluate them based on performance.

<u>Note:</u> Students earning 80% or better in grade 8 (level 2) French, German and Spanish will register for level 3 at Montgomery High School.

51100 French 1 5 credits

This introduction to the basics of the language emphasizes listening and communication skills and acquaints the students with the target country and its culture. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in French. It is student-centered, and students are expected to participate regularly. They are required to speak the target language as much as possible.

PREREQUISITE: None

51200 French 2 5 credits

The second level course continues the emphasis on communication and grammatical structures. Students will develop their awareness of French culture, listening, speaking, reading and writing skills. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in French. It is student-centered, and students are expected to participate regularly. They are required to speak the target language as much as possible. The

target proficiency is novice-high, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of French 1

51300 French 3 5 credits

This intermediate level course aims for proficiency in the four areas of listening, speaking, reading and writing, with an emphasis on cultural awareness communicative skills and grammatical structures. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in French. It is student-centered, and students are expected to participate regularly. They are required to speak the target language as much as possible. The target proficiency is novice-high to intermediate-low, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of French 2

51400 French 4 5 credits

The course is structured according to the three modes of communication (interpretive, interpersonal, and presentational), and based on thematic units. Assessments are derived from authentic materials, and require critical thinking, as well as problem solving skills. The course is conducted almost entirely in the target language, and students are expected to participate frequently, and use the target language consistently. The target proficiency is intermediate-low to intermediate-mid, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of French 3

51499 French 5 5 credits

This course provides an option to further the study of French. Students will communicate their ideas, feelings and opinions both orally and in writing. The emphasis will be oral expression, and the development of aural skills, based on authentic materials. Consistent oral participation is a major component of the grade and students should be prepared to discuss the topic at hand. The target proficiency is intermediate-mid, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of French 4

51500 French 5 - Honors 5 credits

Level 5 Honors offers intensive speaking and writing opportunities, based on a variety of topics organized in thematic units. Students will be able to communicate and express their ideas, feelings and opinions both orally and in writing. Oral reports on cultural topics as well as personal experiences will be presented. Reading will focus on essays, short stories and novels,

poetry, newspaper and magazine articles with reading and speaking activities generated from the reading. Modern and classic French films will also be viewed and discussed. Total immersion is expected at this level. The target proficiency is intermediate-high, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: 85% or better in French 4

51900 AP French 6 5 credits

Advanced Placement World Language courses are for students who wish to continue the intensive speaking and writing activities of the previous level while taking up the more challenging reading of literature and the study of culture. Some colleges may award credit based upon the result of the AP exam. The course is based on six thematic units, dictated by The College Board, and utilizes a variety of authentic resources. Total Immersion is expected at this level. The target proficiency is advanced-low, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: 80% or better in French 5 Honors or 90% or better in French 5

52100 German 1 5 credits

This introduction to the basics of the language emphasizes listening and communication skills and acquaints the students with the target country and its culture. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in German with the primary focus on communication in the three modes: interpersonal, interpretive, and presentational. By the end of the academic year, students should be able to communicate in the target language on an elementary level. The target proficiency is novice-mid, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: None.

52200 German 2 5 credits

The second level course continues the emphasis on the three modes of communication: interpersonal, interpretive, and presentational. Students will develop their awareness of the cultures of Germany, Austria, and Switzerland via exposure to authentic texts, videos, and films. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in German. It is student-centered, and students are expected to participate regularly in the target language as much as possible. The target proficiency is novice-high, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of German 1

52300 German 3 5 credits

This intermediate level course aims for proficiency in the three modes of communication: interpersonal, interpretive, and presentational. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in German. At this stage, students are also exposed to current events, as well as culturally significant historical events in Germany, Austria, and Switzerland through authentic texts, films, and independent research. It is student-centered, and students are expected to participate regularly. They are required to speak the target language as much as possible. The target proficiency is novice-high to intermediate-low, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of German 2

52400 German 4 5 credits

This intermediate level course aims for deeper proficiency in the three modes of communication: interpersonal, interpretive, and presentational. The course is designed around more specific thematic units that highlight the current and rich historical cultures of Germany, Austria, and Switzerland. Assessments are derived from authentic texts, films, and independent research. The course is conducted almost entirely in the target language, and students are expected to participate frequently, and use the target language consistently. The target proficiency is intermediate-low to intermediate-mid, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of German 3

52499 German 5 5 credits

This course provides an option to further the study of German. Students will be able to communicate and express their ideas, feelings and opinions both orally and in writing. Oral reports on literary and cultural topics as well as personal experiences will be presented. Listening activities will include televised newscasts, interviews, and feature length films (both entertaining and political). The target proficiency is intermediate-mid, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of German 4

52500 German 5 - Honors 5 credits

Level 5 Honors includes all topics addressed in regular German 5 with an additional focus on preparing students for AP German. Level 5 Honors offers intensive speaking and writing opportunities, based on a variety of topics organized into thematic units. Students will be able to communicate and express their ideas, feelings, and opinions both orally and in written form. Oral reports on cultural and historical topics as well as personal

experiences will be presented. Reading will focus on essays, short stories, excerpts from novels, poetry, newspaper and magazine articles with reading and speaking activities generated from these readings. Modern and classic German films and television series will also be viewed and discussed. Total Immersion is expected at this level. The target proficiency is intermediatehigh, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: 85% or better in German 4

52900 AP German 6 5 credits

Advanced Placement World Language courses are for students who wish to continue the intensive speaking and writing activities of the previous level, as well as participating in more in-depth research and exposure to the cultures of Germany, Austria, and Switzerland (current events with a focus on Germany's key role in the European Union, the history, and the political system, as well as architecture, art, literature, music, and science). Some colleges may award credit based upon the result of the AP exam. The course is based on six thematic units, dictated by The College Board, and utilizes a variety of authentic resources. Total Immersion is expected at this level. The target proficiency is advanced-low, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: 80% or better in German 5 Honors or 90% or better in German 5

53100 Spanish 1 5 credits

This course is designed for students who have little or no background knowledge of Spanish. At this level students will learn to communicate effectively and by the end of this class, students will reach the Novice-Mid level. Throughout this class, students will develop listening, reading, speaking and writing skills using authentic material from different Hispanic regions in order for the students to learn effectively the Hispanic culture.

PREREQUISITE: None

53200 Spanish 2 5 credits

This course is designed to continue building upon skills of listening, speaking, reading and writing acquired in Spanish I in order to improve students performances based on the ACTFL guidelines. At the end of the class, students will reach the Novice-High level. Vocabulary and grammar are extended in this class by developing language skills. Being engaged in short conversations, interpreting readings, listening to short conversations and writing short paragraphs daily will facilitate students learning.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Spanish 1

53300 Spanish 3 5 credits

This intermediate level course aims for proficiency in the four areas of listening, speaking, reading and writing, with an emphasis on cultural awareness, communicative skills and grammatical structures. This course is designed as an immersion experience, and is conducted primarily in Spanish. It is student-centered, and students are expected to participate regularly. They are required to speak the target language to the fullest extent possible. The target proficiency is novice-high to intermediate-low, according to the ACTFL proficiency guidelines.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Spanish 2

53400 Spanish 4 5 credits

This course continues to emphasize the development of students' interpretive, interpersonal and presentational abilities in Spanish through thematic units infused with cultural information. Efforts will be made to help students express themselves and understand each other better while transitioning from controlled to free expression.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Spanish 3

53499 Spanish 5 5 credits

This course provides an option for further study of Spanish and emphasizes communication and culture. Students will be prepared to use Spanish in real-life situations of a more sophisticated nature, including mature themes like politics, environmental preservation and human rights. The emphasis will be oral expression and the development of communication skills, from discussions about video clips, films & music to conversations about short readings, poetry & magazine articles.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Spanish 4

53500 Spanish 5 - Honors

5 credits

The purpose of the Spanish V Honors course is to develop proficiency in the language across the three communicative modes, Interpersonal, Interpretive and Presentational. Students will therefore be able to express themselves both orally and in writing at a more advanced level. Through listening, speaking, reading and writing the target language, students will build additional vocabulary and grow their knowledge of the Hispanic world. The course will develop student's awareness and appreciation of products, practices, and perspectives of the Spanish-speaking world through a thematic study of current events. As this is a course that aims at preparing the student for the Spanish AP class, the course is conducted exclusively in Spanish. All instructions, lectures, group work, activities and assignments

are presented in Spanish and students are required to speak the target language at all times in the classroom setting.

PREREQUISITE: 85% or better in Spanish 4

53600 Spanish Cinema (El cine Hispano)

5 credits

Students will use the Spanish language as a tool to explore and acquire a cultural, social, political, and historical perspective of Latin America and Spain thru film. We will also use the Spanish Language to communicate our thoughts, positions and opinions, and to discuss current events, events in history, and events in everyday life as they pertain to the films we will be watching. Only Spanish will be spoken in class!

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Spanish 4, Spanish 5, Spanish 5 Honors or AP Spanish 6

53900 AP Spanish 6

5 credits

This course uses thematic units to explore the Spanish speaking countries history, social, economic and contemporary issues and their impact on society. Students analyze and discuss contemporary issues in the Hispanic world, by listening to authentic texts such as online stream news, radio reports, documentaries and dialogues. Students read authentic texts and literature and prepare formal oral and written presentations. Course is student centered and is entirely conducted in the target language. The course prepares students to take the AP test. Some colleges may award credit based upon the result of the AP exam.

PREREQUISITE: 80% or better in Spanish 5Honors

55100 Latin 1 5 credits

This introduction to the language emphasizes the acquisition of reading skills and presents basic grammatical structures. It also acquaints the students with the history, culture and literature of the Romans.

PREREOUISITE: None

55200 Latin 2 5 credits

The second level course continues the emphasis on reading with deeper attention to grammatical structures. It continues to acquaint students with the history, culture and literature of the Romans.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Latin 1

55300 Latin 3 5 credits

This intermediate level course completes the introduction to the grammar and syntax of the language, and aims for proficiency in reading extended narrative passages. Students are also introduced to reading unaltered Latin prose and poetry.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Latin 2

55500 Latin 3 - Honors

5 credits

This intermediate level course completes the introduction to the grammar and syntax of the language and develops skills in reading extended, unadapted Latin prose. After completing the grammar sequence, students read selections from important prose works of the late Roman Republic or Augustan Age, such as Sallust's *Bellum Catilinae*, Caesar's *De Bello Gallico*, Cicero's *In Verrem* or the *Res Gestae Divi Augusti*. Students also study the cultural and political environments in which the literature being studied was produced.

PREREQUISITE: 85% or better in Latin 2, and teacher recommendation

55400 Latin 4 5 credits

This intermediate level course aims for proficiency in reading and interpreting unaltered Latin prose and poetry, and acquiring and understanding of the civilization within which the literature studied was produced.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Latin 3 or Latin 3 Honors

The curriculum of the whole Chinese program, from Chinese I - Chinese IV, is designed for non-heritage speakers. Students who can speak Chinese, have been taught at home or have attended weekend Chinese school must be evaluated by the Chinese teacher for an appropriate placement.

56100 Chinese 1 5 credits

This is an introductory course designed for students having no previous knowledge of the language. In this course students learn to recognize, read and write (either traditional or simplified) Chinese characters from the beginning. The course is also conducted with an emphasis on the basic skills of listening and speaking from the beginning. Culture is intertwined throughout the course. Students will learn to key in Chinese on the computer in this course.

PREREQUISITE: None. Students who can speak Chinese must contact the Chinese teacher for an evaluation 56200 Chinese 2 5 credits

The course is a continuation of Chinese 1. In this course, all four language skills of listening, speaking, reading, and writing are further developed. There is an emphasis on communicative skills as this course increases student's oral proficiency and writing skill from strings of sentences to short paragraphs. As in Chinese 1, cultural aspects of the language will be an integral part of the course.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Chinese 1 or approval of the Chinese teacher after an evaluation.

56300 Chinese 3 5 credits

This course is for students who have fulfilled the requirements of Chinese 2. Students extend the application of vocabulary and idiomatic expressions to develop proficiency in their interpretive, interpersonal, and presentational skills. Oral skill is emphasized through thematic conversations. Students combine short paragraphs to create short compositions or stories. Students will further their knowledge of the Chinese culture through the study of the target language.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Chinese 2 or approval of the Chinese teacher after an evaluation.

56400 Chinese 4 5 credits

This course continues the ongoing development in communicative competence and greater fluency and accuracy when speaking, listening, reading and writing in Chinese. Contemporary topics are incorporated into the thematic instruction. Students gain a further understanding of the Chinese culture through the study of the target language in this course.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Chinese 3 or approval of the Chinese teacher after an evaluation.

21st CENTURY LIFE AND CAREERS or CAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION

The State of New Jersey requires high school graduates to have 5 credits of 21st Century Life and Careers or Career Technical Education (CECFLS) and 5 credits of Visual and Performing Arts (VPA). The curricula for the courses described below have been written to comply with the NJ Core Curriculum Content Standards in both these areas. Students who wish to take more than the 5 required credits in either of these course groups must plan their elective program carefully. Typically the senior year has fewer required courses allowing students to take several electives during that year. Students wanting to take four years of either concentration (VPA or CECFLS) could meet the requirement for the other grouping by scheduling the 5 credits (2 one-semester courses or one full year course) in his/her senior year.

Career Exploration

60100 Journalism I 5 credits

Students in Journalism learn how to compose news stories, feature articles, and editorials. Trends in layout, production, and graphics are also examined. The course also aims at developing students' understanding of the impact of high technology on journalism. Students are required to write articles for the school's newspaper and to assist with the yearbook, if necessary.

PREREQUISITE: Open to students in grades 10, 11 and 12 who have received a grade of 75% or better in the required English program

60200 Journalism II 5 credits

The Journalism II elective is a self-paced class for those students who have an interest in Journalism and journalistic writing. Students study such topics as layout and design, in-depth reporting, broadcast journalism and copy editing.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Intro to Literature & Composition, Journalism I with a grade of 75% or better or a letter from the newspaper advisor

Computer Applications/Computer Science

62200 Introduction to Computer Languages (s)

2.5 credits

This course is for students who want to explore computer programming, or have had no previous programming experience. Students will learn the techniques for proper math coding in order to program computers for problem solving. They will learn the syntax of programming in the Visual Basic.Net language, a good programming language for beginners. The course will assist students in developing their programming abilities by having them write programs to solve business related problems.

PREREQUISITE: None

62400 Foundations of JAVA (s)

2.5 credits

Java is currently one of the fastest growing computer programming languages used in developing computer programs. Students will learn the fundamental concepts of programming with algorithm design and code implementation. Students will be taught how to write efficient computer programs including graphics. This course consists of interesting individual/group programming projects and case studies that they are likely to encounter in the real world. Students will learn how to build applets and how to write programs that display graphical shapes. This course will satisfy the prerequisite for AP Computer Science.

PREREQUISITE: None

62500 Game Design & Application Development (s) 2.5 credits

This one semester course will engage students in a project-based curriculum that teaches the game design and application development process. Game and application design is considered one of the fastest growing, most exciting career areas in computer programming. Students will be introduced to game design and creation software which will allow them to create many different types of games and applications including action, adventure and puzzle.

PREREQUISITE: None (although it is recommended that students have prior programming experience)

62900 AP Computer Science - A

5 credits

AP Computer Science A is a full year course with emphasis on object oriented programming in JAVA. Students will learn programming methodology with importance on problem solving algorithm development and data structures. This course consists of several interesting programming projects and case studies. Students in this Advanced Placement course will

follow a most rigorous curriculum based on the Java programming language.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Foundations of JAVA

62610 Webpage Design & Development (s) 2.5 credits

This course is an introduction to the design, creation and maintenance of web pages and websites. Students learn how to analyze and evaluate website quality, create and maintain visually dynamic web pages, identify core web design standards, and analyze the importance of web pages in today's society.

PREREQUISITE: None

Business Administration

61100 Basic Accounting (s)

2.5 credits

The field of business is for individuals looking for an exciting career; one that offers earnings potential, pleasant working conditions, and opportunities for advancement. Every industry needs accounting and employment of accountants is predicted to grow faster than all other occupations through 2016. Basic Accounting will introduce students to the accounting cycle, which will serve as a sound background for employment in office jobs, owning your own business, and preparation for post-secondary institutions. Students will be introduced to the computerized accounting cycle stressing skills needed for producing financial statements for both a single proprietorship and a partnership.

PREREQUISITE: None

61600 Financial Literacy (s)

2.5 credits

Every student needs to manage their finances now, and throughout adulthood. Financial Literacy addresses the need for all students to learn how to earn, invest, manage and keep their money. Through exciting, student-centered activities and projects that require 21st century skills, our students will master career explorations, money management, credit, saving and investing, informed purchasing, civic financial responsibility and risk management. This course will satisfy the 2.5 credits in Financial Literacy mandated by the State of New Jersey.

PREREQUISITE: None

61300 Business and Personal Law (s)

2.5 credits

In Business and Personal Law, students will learn about the basic issues of our legal system that relate to everyday living. Students will learn the fundamental principles of law, the history of our laws, criminal/civil procedures and various torts and crimes; this course helps make students aware of problems facing society today. Students then use critical analysis methods to deal with these problems by using case studies, and small group collaboration.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 10, 11 and 12

61400 Introduction to Entrepreneurship (s)

Owning your own business is the "American Dream." An entrepreneur attempts to earn a profit by taking the risk of operating a business. Students will learn about the fastest growing form of business, electronic commerce. Analyzing markets, sales and advertising strategies, obtaining capital, modern management techniques, managing personnel, website creation and much more are taught. The course will inform students of their financial responsibilities as citizens, students, family members, consumers and active participants in the business world. Included are guest speakers and computer simulations. This course will satisfy the 2.5 credits in Financial Literacy mandated by the State of New Jersey.

PREREQUISITE: None

61500 Sports and Entertainment Marketing (s) 2.5 credits

Sports and Entertainment Marketing is an exciting, student driven course designed for students who are interested in pursuing a career in business as well as the sports and entertainment industries. This course will emphasize some of the core concepts in marketing/business as they pertain to these two competitive industries. Some of these core concepts include market research, corporate sponsorship, endorsements, target marketing, etc. Students will develop critical thinking, decision making, and communications skills utilizing real world applications. This course will be extremely beneficial for any student looking to pursue a major in business and an eventual career in business. Outside of the normal classroom activities, students will get the opportunity to listen to a wide variety of guest speakers from the sports and entertainment industries, examine case studies, and visit various sports and entertainment venues, thus, supplementing all of the core concepts that are being discussed in class.

PREREQUISITE: None

Communication Technology

63100 Television Production I

5 credits

2.5 credits

The student is introduced to television techniques and the use of television as a mass communication medium. Working as a member of a production

team, each student writes directs, and produces videos for use on the MHS cable television station, in house productions, or special video production for use within the school. Students experience studio practice, camera direction, lighting and editing using special effects. Students gain television production experience using interdisciplinary projects and the development of cooperative problem solving skills as a major focus. Students are expected to produce a minimum of one video every other week.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 10, 11 and 12

63200 Television Production II

5 credits

TV Production II is an advanced course that builds upon concepts and skills taught in TV Production I. Students act as producers and directors of our cable television show. They also develop the plan for morning announcements and various projects throughout the year.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of TV Production I

63300 Television Production III

5 credits

This course is designed as an independent study for students who want to produce various video products. They act as executive producers of the current shows and help to produce special segments throughout the year. Students apply knowledge learned from TV Production I and TV Production II to complete these projects.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of TV Production II

63400 Radio Broadcasting (s)

2.5 credits

This semester long course is designed to provide M.H.S. students with experience in radio broadcast delivered to the public via internet streaming. Students will gain experience in the everyday running of an internet based radio studio utilizing both live as well as pre-recorded formats. Students will develop skills essential to the following positions: on air talent, producer, public relations/marketing, studio engineer, etc./ Students will be responsible for programming the day's music/promos as well as developing weekly live broadcast shows revolving around various genres of music, talk show format, and the eventual airing of live M.H.S. sports and events broadcasts. Utilizing a project based, student driven curriculum, M.H.S. students will gain an appreciation for various aspects of radio broadcasting, ultimately realizing how significant these concepts are to all careers within the realm of communications.

PREREQUISITE: None

Industrial Arts/Pre-Engineering

65100 Media & Graphic Communication I (s)

2.5 credits

Media & Graphic Communication I will explore the foundations and applications of modern printing, photography, computer graphics and different forms of graphic reproduction. Students will learn the history and development of graphic arts as well as career opportunities related to communication technology. In addition to Lithographic Technology students will be taught screen making, and sketching/typography. Small problem-solving activities will include ways to develop and solve design challenge activities.

PREREQUISITE: None

65200 Media & Graphic Communication II 5 credits

Media & Graphic Communication II will explore the applications technical processes of advanced printing, computer graphics, and different forms of graphic reproduction. Students will learn to develop new methods of graphic art technologies as well as participate in career opportunities related to communication technology. In addition to Lithographic Technology students will master screen making and printing. Small problem -solving activities will include ways to learn and develop design challenge activities. PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Media and Graphic Communication I

66100 Architectural Design I (s)

2.5 credits

Architectural Design I is designed to introduce the fundamentals of architectural design principles and techniques. Students will learn to hand sketch plans and how to use a Computer Assisted Design (CAD) program to do architectural design. A major emphasis is placed on learning how residential and commercial systems are designed, planned and constructed. This course will engage students in real-world design activities such as designing houses, kitchens and bathrooms.

PREREQUISITE: None

66200 Architectural Design II

5 credits

Architectural Design II is designed for students seeking a more advanced course of study devoted to architectural design principles and techniques. Students will make extensive use of a Computer Assisted Design (CAD) program to do detailed architectural design. A major emphasis is placed on learning how residential and commercial buildings are designed, planned and constructed. This course will engage students in real-world design

activities such as planning a commercial project, managing a home construction project, and various remodeling projects.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Architectural Design I

65300	Portfolio Project-Media & Graphics Communication	5 credits
66300	Portfolio Project-Architecture	5 credits
67300	Portfolio Project-Engineering	5 credits
69300	Portfolio Project-Computer Aided Drafting & Design	5 credits

Portfolio Project is a course designed to give experienced students who have taken prerequisite Technology Education courses an opportunity to develop a professional portfolio. The student portfolio can have a concentration in areas such as Architectural Design, Robotic Systems, Power & Energy, Graphic Information Systems, or Media & Graphics. This professional portfolio can be used to investigate a potential career or prepare for a college course of study.

PREREQUISITE: One or more Level I courses plus a Level II Technology Education course. Open to 12th grade only

67100 Engineering Design & Material Fabrication I (s)

2.5 credits
Engineering Design & Material Fabrication I is designed to introduce the
fundamentals of material processing techniques. This course emphasizes
safety and will engage students in real-world design activities. It is project
oriented and designed to teach hand, power, and machine tool skills as well
as the knowledge needed to support those skills. Students will become
familiar with manual operations and the utilization of automated equipment.
This course explores the nature and impact of technology in our everyday
lives.

PREREQUISITE: None

67200 Engineering Design & Material Fabrication II 5 credits

Engineering Design & Material Fabrication II continues the exploration of materials processing techniques. This course reemphasizes the importance of safety and how real-world design activities impact us. It is project oriented and designed to teach hand, power, and machine tool skills as well as the knowledge needed to support those skills. Students will design and develop an approved full year project appropriate for the current facility. This course explores the nature and impact of technology in our everyday lives.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Engineering Design and Materials Fabrication I

68100 Power, Energy & Transportation Technology (s) 2.5 credits

Power, Energy & Transportation Technology studies a wide view of transportation technologies. Students will learn the history and development of the internal combustion engine. This includes the theory of operation for two and four stroke engines. They will identify basic model series and perform full disassembly and reassembly of their engines. Students will be given small problem solving activities which will include testing different parts of their engines numerous times throughout the course. Lastly they will paint and test their engines for operation.

PREREQUISITE: None

68200 Robotics and Mechanical Systems (s) 2.5 credits

Robotics and Mechanical Systems introduce students to the fundamental principles of mechanical design with an emphasis on robotic and mechanical systems. Students will construct robots using mechanical systems and programming to address a variety of Engineering design challenges. Electronic fundamentals and wireless communication will be introduced as part of the design challenges. Major emphasis is placed on learning how these systems are designed, manufactured and applied to real-world problems. Students have the ability to understand what is involved in the FIRST Robotics Team Competitions.

PREREQUISITE: None

69000 Engineering Drawing and

Computer Aided Design and Drafting (CADD) (s) 2.5 credits

Engineering drawing and CADD is designed for students seeking a more specific course of study devoted to the engineering disciplines. Major emphasis is placed on engineering design and fundamentals. Students will start the course by learning isometric sketching skills. There will be an extensive use of 2D and 3D Computer aided design and drafting (CADD) Programs that are used in industry today. The use of precision measuring equipment will be used in reverse engineering and design projects. This course is designed for the student interested in pursuing Engineering in college.

PREREQUISITE: None

69100 Introduction to Engineering (s) 2.5 credits

Introduction to Engineering is designed for students seeking more information about a career in Engineering. This course will continue where Engineering Drawing ended and will use 3D CADD software to design assemblies consisting of materials, bearings, bushings and gears. Insight into the different types of Engineering will be researched and discussed.

The course will prepare students for the first year of an Engineering path. Some areas to be covered will be: advanced engineering drawing, the use of precision measuring equipment, basic material science, the design process and problem solving. Students thinking about engineering as a career path will greatly benefit from taking this course.

PREREQUISITE: Engineering Drawing and Computer Aided Design and Drafting.

Family & Consumer Sciences/Culinary Arts

64100 Introduction to Culinary Arts (s)

2.5 credits

The class is designed to familiarize students with the basic techniques of food preparation. Students will prepare appetizers, entrees, side dishes, desserts and snacks that incorporate each of the food groups. Nutrition, meal preparation, food selection, preparation techniques, sanitation and food service will be emphasized. Careers in food service and management will be explored.

PREREQUISITE: None

64200 International Cuisine & Culture (s)

2.5 credits

Building upon the basic concepts of food preparation learned in Introduction to Culinary Arts, students will be exposed to the world of international and ethnic cuisine as part of an individual's cultural identity. Specifically, students will analyze and compare the interrelationship between cuisine and culture. Students will also examine the relationship between a country's cuisine and their climate, agricultural stability, geography, standard of living, religion, etc. Students will learn the culture, history and traditional preparation techniques of foods originating from countries such as: France, Japan, Italy, China, Mexico and others. Also, students will experience the art of garnishing and plate presentation. Incorporating topics of nutrition, safety, sanitation, and food borne illnesses will be ongoing. Culinary, hospitality and food related careers will be highlighted.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Introduction to Culinary Arts

64500 The Art of Baking (s)

2.5 credits

This semester long course is designed to provide M.H.S. students with experience in the exciting culinary world of cake making and decorating. With the popularity of shows like *Cake Boss* and *Cupcake Wars*, decorative baking has become an extremely popular niche within the culinary world. Students will gain experience in baking specific desserts as well as decorating them. Students will develop skills essential to being a successful baker. Furthermore, these skills can easily be transferred into the everyday

lives of anyone that simply enjoys baking. Students will be responsible for researching various types of cakes, baking them to industry standard, and decorating them. Utilizing a project based, student driven curriculum, M.H.S. students will gain an appreciation for various aspects of baking and cake decorating, ultimately realizing that they are easily able to transfer these skills into their everyday lives.

PREREQUISITE: None

64300 Fashion and Clothing (s)

2.5 credits

Basic fashion appreciation and construction will be learned through a handson approach. Students will learn about: wardrobe planning, personal style selection, consumer skills, textiles and clothing care. Students will learn to create a garment using a commercial pattern, operate a sewing machine and various clothing construction equipment. Independent work on their projects will be on going throughout the semester. Students will also gain basic knowledge of careers available in the fashion industry.

PREREQUISITE: None

64600 The Class of LIFE (s)

2.5 credits

The course is designed to prepare students for self-sufficiency and independence. Units of study will include: career selection, resumes, obtaining a job, money management, banking, taxes, financial investments, consumer skills, housing, insurance, available resources and ethical choices. Each of the areas of study will incorporate good decision making skills that will help them to manage their life and successfully meet the challenges of inter and intra personal relationships.

PREREQUISITE: This elective is open to students in grades 11 or 12

VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS

VISUAL ART

70000 Creative Expressions (s)

2.5 credits

This is a semester course designed to provide a foundation in the visual arts and design. Students will explore their creativity while learning how to paint, draw, and sculpt as well as use other exciting media. This class is designed to provide beginning students with guided experiences in materials, media, and basic art concepts. Because the intention of this course is to introduce students to the world of making art, grades are based upon students' willingness to experiment with new skills and explore their creativity. Come explore your creativity!

PREREQUISITE: NONE

70100 Studio I (s)

2.5 credits

Studio I introduces students to new materials and techniques through guided concepts and assignments. Students will be given concepts and allowed to explore them through their own individual voice. Studio I is a semester course that helps the student develop their own visual literacy. This is the introductory course to the studio sequence. Upon completion of this course, students will be prepared to move forward to Studio II.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Creative Expressions or recommendation of art teacher from UMS or MHS.

70200 Studio II (s)

2.5 credits

Studio II students are given the opportunity to polish their technical skills and explore various themes that interest them personally. At this level, students are encouraged to gather inspirational materials independently and to keep a sketchbook. Students will explore advanced media, art-history, contemporary trends and develop works of art through proposed questions and themes. Students will also explore career opportunities which will enhance their knowledge of the art world. The course will provide portfolio guidance and direct students toward technical competence, visual understanding, and the ability to communicate ideas and concepts.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Studio I

70400 Honors Portfolio

5 credits

This year-long course is designed for students who are seriously interested in developing a college portfolio that showcases the wide range of their technical and conceptual achievements. The level of work expected of students in this course is synonymous with that of college art majors.

Students will participate in the annual Visual Arts Extravaganza. This course prepares students for AP Studio by fostering independent growth with peer feedback and guidance from the teacher.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Studio II

AP Art Studio Concentrations:

70910 Studio Art or 2D Portfolio

5 credits

In this year-long course students will develop a consistent, theme-based body of 12 pieces which will be displayed at the Art Extravaganza, gallery style. Students investigate a theme deeply and produce a polished series of paintings or works of art that are stylistically unified and recognizable. Students are given a high level of responsibility and accountability and are expected to bring their own influences, references and skills to the table. AP Studio students produce a portfolio for college applications, the Arts Extravaganza solo exhibit, and for an optional evaluation by the College Board. This course requires a high degree of commitment and self-discipline due to the rigorous curriculum and the individualized course structure.

PREREQUISITE: Interview with art faculty for concentration placement approval as well as successful completion of either honors portfolio or Advanced Photography.

71100 Photography I (s)

2.5 credits

Photo I is a semester course designed to provide a foundation in 35mm black and white analog photography while giving students a strong foundation in visual arts. Signature experiences will be tempered by smaller assignments, technical lessons and demonstrations. This course introduces the four major areas of study in the fine arts: Themes and Forms, Core Concepts, Techniques and Tools, and Culture & History. A 35mm manual camera is not required but strongly recommended.

PREREQUISITE: None

71200 Photography II (s)

2.5 credits

Photo II is a semester course designed to provide a foundation in digital photography and post processing with Adobe Photoshop while giving students a strong foundation in visual arts. Signature experiences will be tempered by smaller assignments and larger projects, technical lessons and demonstrations. Independent problem solving will be expected to complete conceptual artworks. The four major areas of study are synthesized in each project: Themes and Forms, Core Concepts, Techniques and Tools, and Culture & History. A Digital camera is not required but strongly recommended.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Photography I

71300 Advanced Photography

5 credits

This is a year-long course designed for students who are seriously interested in photography as their artistic medium. At this advanced level, students are already familiar with the signature experiences in both analog and digital photography. This course is mainly a digital photography course; however students do have the opportunity to use black and white film, or a combination of the two throughout the course. In this course students will explore movements and themes throughout photographic history and develop photographs through proposed questions and themes. Advanced techniques in regards to photographing with a DSLR camera as well as editing with Adobe Photoshop will be introduced throughout the year. Individual instruction will be provided to each student based on the technical and aesthetic needs of their specific project. Students are expected to engage in running critical dialogues: to self-critique. They will rely on their peers as a constant source of formal and informal feedback throughout the class period and during Community Critiques. Overall, this course will provide guidance toward technical competence, visual understanding, and the ability to communicate ideas and concepts clearly. Students will start creating pieces that can be used within a college portfolio. The highlight of the advanced photo courses is the showcase of their work in a personal solo exhibit at Art Extravaganza at the end of the year.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Photography II

AP Art Studio Concentrations: 70920 Photo/2D Portfolio

5 credits

This year long course is designed for students who are seriously interested in the practical experience of art-making through photography, including the creation of a college portfolio. The core of this course consists of intensive, guided exploration of media, demonstrations, reference gathering, formal group critiques, reflections, and frequent sketch booking. Students experience a variety of concepts, techniques and approaches designed to help them demonstrate their abilities as well as their versatility with techniques, problem solving, and conceptualization. This course requires a high degree of commitment and self discipline. Students are expected to perform at the highest level of understanding in the use of four major areas of study in the fine arts: Themes and Forms, Core Concepts, Techniques and Tools, and Culture & History. The highlights of this course are the production of a portfolio for college applications and for an optional evaluation by the College Board, as well as a personal solo exhibit at the Arts Extravaganza.

PREREQUISITE: Interview with art faculty for concentration placement approval as well as successful completion of either honors portfolio or Advanced Photography.

72000 Digital 2D Design (s)

2.5 credits

This is a half-year digital design course consisting of artistic and creative design projects based in the elements and principles of art and design. Using digital technology and Adobe Creative Suite, students will explore the use of creative artistry in designing products such as magazine layouts, advertisements and other forms of visual communication. The focus of this course is on the use of technology to create cutting edge commercial content with an artistic vision. Relevant contemporary and historical designers will be included in the course material. Cross curricular connections exist with our technology and business departments as students consider how their designs can be used in production, advertising and marketing.

PREREQUISITE: None

70500 Cultural Crafts (s)

2.5 credits

Cultural Crafts is a semester-long investigation of Global and American craft forms. A variety of techniques and materials will be used to create functional and non-functional works. Students will work with media and materials to learn a variety of world crafting traditions and folk arts. Projects might include pieced quilting, tramp art, weaving, batik, mosaics, paper mâche and more. This course introduces the four major areas of study in the fine arts: Themes & Forms, Core Concepts, Techniques and Tools and Culture & History.

PREREQUISITE: None

70600 Ceramics (s)

2.5 credits

Ceramics is a semester course that explores hand built and wheel-thrown ceramics. Students will develop their awareness of the Elements and Principals of Design as they apply to the sculptural form, bas relief and pottery. They will experience additive, subtractive, wheel thrown and glazing methods. This course introduces the four major areas of Study in the fine arts: Themes & Forms; Core Concepts; Techniques & Tools: and Culture & History.

PREREQUISITE: None

70610 Ceramics II (s)

2.5 credits

Ceramics II challenges students that want to progress in the ceramic arts. As a 3D class students will be expected to create sculptural forms, while being exposed to experimental techniques. Student will also have the

opportunity to further their skill on the potter's wheel, develop their own artistic style, explore concepts and begin to develop their artist voice in clay. This is a semester course that further explores the four major areas of study in the fine arts: Themes and Forms; Core Concepts; Techniques and Tools; and Culture & History.

PREREQUISITE: Ceramics

MUSIC

75000 Symphonic Band

5 credits

Symphonic Band is for students in 9th through 12th grade. The objectives of the course are to increase individual instrumental proficiency skills; increase ensemble skills pertaining to the concert band idiom; deepen students' understanding of their musical intelligence and knowledge; enhance appreciation of music; enhance self-awareness and self-esteem; increase self-reflection and creative thinking skills; stress individual and group responsibility through membership in a democratic organization; foster pride in Montgomery High School; develop self-discipline through the study and performance of demanding music; and to develop poise and selfconfidence through public performance. The Symphonic Band performs a minimum of three times per year. Repertoire performed is normally grade III and IV. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include attendance at and preparation for lessons with the band director during unit lunch, successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire playing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, student-graded rehearsals and concerts, homework completion. and class preparation.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of band in the previous year or successful audition with permission of the director

75100 Symphonic Winds

5 credits

Symphonic Winds is a select, auditioned ensemble, primarily for 10th to 12th grade students. 9th grade students may choose to audition for symphonic winds in the spring of their 8th grade year. The objectives of the course are to increase individual instrumental proficiency skills; increase ensemble skills pertaining to the wind band idiom; deepen students' understanding of their musical intelligence and knowledge; enhance appreciation of music; enhance self-awareness and self-esteem; increase self-reflection and creative thinking skills; stress individual and group responsibility through membership in a democratic organization; foster pride in Montgomery High School; develop self-discipline through the study and performance of demanding music; and to develop poise and self confidence through public performance. The Symphonic Winds perform at least three times per year. Symphonic Winds students are expected to perform to a high level, performing grade III - V repertoire. Participation is governed by a rigid consideration for proper instrumentation and balance. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include attendance at and

preparation for lessons with the band director during unit lunch, successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire playing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, student-graded rehearsals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation. *PREREQUISITE:* Successful completion of band in the previous year as well as a successful audition with permission of the director

75200 Wind Ensemble 5 credits

Wind Ensemble is open to $9th - 12^{th}$ grade students and is the highest skill level curricular band class. Students in the wind ensemble will engage in a rigorous study of advanced wind band repertoire that is normally performed at the collegiate or professional level. The objectives of the course are to teach students advanced levels of instrumental pedagogy skills; achieve collegiate level ensemble skills that pertain to the wind band idiom; deepen students' understanding of their musical intelligence and knowledge; enhance appreciation of music through exposure to and performance of quality repertoire; enhance self-awareness and self-esteem; increase selfreflection and creative thinking skills; stress individual and group responsibility through membership in a democratic organization; foster pride in Montgomery High School; develop self-discipline through the study and performance of demanding music; and to develop poise and selfconfidence through public performance. The Wind Ensemble performs a minimum of four times per year, usually more. Students may also be asked to attend a few weekend rehearsals during the school year, schedule permitting. Wind Ensemble students are expected to work to their highest levels with grade level IV - VI repertoire being performed. Participation is governed by a rigid consideration for proper instrumentation and balance. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include attendance at and preparation for lessons with the band director during unit lunch, successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire playing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, student-graded rehearsals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of a curricular band in the previous year as well as a successful audition with the director

75500 Honors Wind Ensemble

Honors Wind Ensemble is open to students in 12th grade. This course meets at the same time as wind ensemble. In addition to the requirements of wind ensemble, students in Honors Wind Ensemble must prepare for and

participate in at least one chamber music performance as well as research our repertoire and prepare historical notes for the concerts.

PREREQUISITE: Students must be in their senior year to enroll in this course. Additionally, students must successfully audition with the band director and receive permission to register.

76000 Concert Orchestra 5 credits

Concert Orchestra is for students in 9th through 12th grade. The objectives of the course are to increase individual instrumental proficiency skills; increase ensemble skills pertaining to the string orchestra idiom; deepen students' understanding of their musical intelligence and knowledge; enhance appreciation of music; enhance self-awareness and self-esteem; increase self-reflection and creative thinking skills; stress individual and group responsibility through membership in a democratic organization; foster pride in Montgomery High School; develop self-discipline through the study and performance of demanding music; and to develop poise and selfconfidence through public performance. The Concert Orchestra performs a minimum of three times per year. Repertoire performed is normally grade III and IV. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include attendance at and preparation for lessons with the orchestra director during unit lunch, successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire playing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, student-graded rehearsals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of orchestra in the previous year or successful audition with permission of the director

76100 Chamber Orchestra 5 credits

Chamber Orchestra is open to students in the 9th through 12th grades and is the highest skill level curricular orchestra class. Students in the chamber orchestra will engage in a rigorous study of advanced string orchestra and full orchestra repertoire that is normally performed at the collegiate or professional level. The objectives of the course are to teach students advanced levels of instrumental pedagogy skills; achieve collegiate level ensemble skills that pertain to the orchestra idiom; deepen students' understanding of their musical intelligence and knowledge; enhance appreciation of music through exposure to and performance of quality repertoire; enhance self-awareness and self-esteem; increase self-reflection and creative thinking skills; stress individual and group responsibility through membership in a democratic organization; foster pride in Montgomery High School; develop self-discipline through the study and performance of demanding music; and to develop poise and self-confidence

through public performance. The Chamber Orchestra performs a minimum of four times per year, usually more. Students may also be asked to attend a few weekend rehearsals during the school year, schedule permitting. Chamber Orchestra students are expected to work to their highest levels with grade level IV - VI repertoire being performed. Participation is governed by a rigid consideration for proper instrumentation and balance. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include attendance at and preparation for lessons with the orchestra director during unit lunch, successful presentation of mandatory concerts, successful individual repertoire playing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, student-graded rehearsals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of a curricular orchestra in the previous year as well as a successful audition with the director

76500 Honors Chamber Orchestra 5 credits

Honors Chamber Orchestra is open to students in 12th grade. This course meets at the same time as chamber orchestra. In addition to the requirements of chamber orchestra, students in Honors Chamber Orchestra must prepare for and participate in at least one chamber music performance as well as research our repertoire and prepare historical notes for the concerts.

PREREQUISITE: Students must be in their senior year to enroll in this course. Additionally, students must successfully audition with the orchestra director and receive permission to register.

77000 Concert Choir 5 credits

This course welcomes students to a dynamic and challenging musical environment. Through a myriad of vocal music genres, students will strengthen their ability to vocalize and develop their fluency of vocal art music. Objectives of this course are to increase vocal skills, develop an appreciation and knowledge of ensemble singing, promote individual and communal growth, create a sense of self-discipline and confidence in using their voice, and create a solid foundation of musicianship. Participation in performances is a course requirement. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire singing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, graded sectionals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation.

77200 Montgomery High School Chorale

5 credits

This course is a full-year ensemble that focuses on the breadth of challenging vocal music written for soprano and alto voicing. Participation is open to $10^{th}-12^{th}$ grade students by audition. Singers enrolled will learn advanced vocal technique, sight-reading, musicianship and ensemble practice through rehearsals and performances of literature from various styles, genres, cultures and eras. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire singing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, graded sectionals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of audition and permission of director.

77100 Chamber Choir

5 credits

Chamber choir is open to $10^{th} - 12^{th}$ grade students. Acceptance into this ensemble offers an opportunity for students who display outstanding vocal skills and musicianship to participate in a smaller, advanced level vocal group. Students will be responsible for performing advanced high school, collegiate, and professional level repertoire. The size and distribution of the parts of the ensemble will be determined by the balance needs for the group on a year-by-year basis. Members will study a wide variety of rigorous and rewarding literature while honing vocal and ensemble skills. participation in concerts, festivals and other performance venues are a Participation is governed by a rigid requirement of this course. consideration for proper vocal balance. Marking period grades are determined by a number of factors, to include successful presentation of mandatory concerts, individual repertoire singing assessments, individual pedagogical benchmark assessments, graded sectionals and concerts, homework completion, and class preparation.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of an audition and recommendation of the director

77500 Honors Chamber Choir

5 credits

Honors Chamber Choir is open to students in 12th grade. This course meets at the same time as chamber choir. In addition to the requirements of chamber choir, students in Honors Chamber Choir must prepare for and participate in at least one chamber or solo music performance as well as research our repertoire and prepare historical notes for the concerts.

PREREQUISITE: Students must be in their senior year to enroll in this course. Additionally, students must successfully audition with the choir director and receive permission to register.

78300 Blues to Beatles (s)

2.5 credits

This course will examine the history of American art forms of music focusing on jazz and Rock and Roll. Jazz is an American art form with roots in American history and culture. Over the decades, jazz has evolved, with one of the outcomes being rock and roll. Students will study the music of some of our most famous jazz artists and rock bands as well as survey the current popular music scene. Through their study, students will analyze and critique performances as well as make connections to American cultural and historical development.

PREREQUISITE: None

78100 Music in Culture (s)

2.5 credits

Students will have the opportunity to strengthen and deepen their awareness, understanding and acceptance of different peoples, different cultures, and different times. By exploring history and world cultures through a broader aspect of civilization, students will have the experience of visiting a specific time and place through the performing arts. Individual as well as group work will include researching, sharing, and hands-on activities.

PREREQUISITE: None

SPEECH ARTS

73100 Introduction to Drama I (s)

2.5 credits

This is an introductory elective course with emphasis on theater exercises, theater games, mime, and improvisations. Additionally, mini-lectures are given on dramatic literature, history of the theater, technical terms and stagecraft, and play reading and critiquing.

PREREQUISITE: None

73200 Introduction to Drama II (s)

2.5 credits

This course is a practical workshop incorporating readings from the classics and modern dramatic literature, improvisations, mime, auditioning techniques, and preparation for the production of a play.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion in Introduction to Drama I or teacher approval

73300 Advanced Drama III

5 credits

This is a full year course that continues with the goals introduced in Drama I and II. The Advanced Drama III course focuses on the student's understanding of theater and the rehearsal process that leads to a polished performance. This course deals with both acting and technical theater, and gives students a solid background in the world of theater.

PREREQUISITE: Successful completion of Introduction to Drama II.

74000 Public Speaking (s)

2.5 credits

Public Speaking is a one-semester course that teaches communication skills in listening, speaking, reading and writing. It gives students the opportunity to explore a variety of ways to communicate to different groups of people. PREREOUISITE: None

HEALTH, SAFETY AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION

Health/Physical Education

5 Credits

The aim of the Comprehensive Health, Safety and Physical Education program at Montgomery High School is to develop the students' knowledge, skills, and attitudes necessary to lead an active, healthy lifestyle. The program provides an equitable opportunity for all students to realize the benefits of participation in physical activity. A highlight of the Comprehensive Health, Safety and Physical Education program is an outstanding aquatic experience that allows students to either learn how to swim or strengthen their swimming ability, in addition to the traditional sports, games, and fitness-directed activities.

The high school program is designed to prepare students to reach fitness goals and maintain a healthy level of physical health long after they graduate. The curriculum is complimented by a variety of lifetime and team sports offerings. All students are required to take three quarters of physical education and one quarter of health education each school year.

Health courses are designed to empower students with relevant information to help them make responsible decisions regarding their physical, social, and mental/emotional wellness. Health is a most prized possession and an integral part of every phase of life. The state of our health affects our ability to learn, live, and relate to others. The knowledge gained from the Health Education curriculum establishes a foundation for healthful, productive living.

Adolescent Wellness (Grade 9 Health)

This course is designed to develop knowledge, concepts, skills, behaviors, and attitudes related to the six categories of risk behaviors in teens. Students learn and implement decision making skills and communication skills for everyday situations they experience as adolescents. We also discuss topics related to puberty, the male and female reproductive systems, pregnancy, and child birth.

Drivers Education (Grade 10 Health)

This course is designed to teach future drivers how to assess and manage the risks involved when behind the wheel of a vehicle. Not only do students learn state laws and general rules of the road, but they also learn how certain mental, physical, and emotional factors can affect their driving ability. Our goal is to mentally prepare MHS students to become safe, responsible,

licensed drivers. Students will prepare for and be administered the New Jersey State Written Drivers Exam at the end of the course.

First Aid, CPR and AED (Grade 11 Health)

This course is designed to teach students the basic information and skills necessary for certification in First Aid, CPR and AED. The course is taught by teachers with instructor level credentials in Community First Aid & CPR/AED. Hands – on instruction guides this class through the training that may help them to save a life one day.

Human Sexuality and Family Living (Grade 12 Health)

This course is designed to enhance a student's understanding of relationships and basic concepts related to human sexuality. Class discussion and group projects related to current topics such as disease prevention, dating, violence and coping with loss are an integral part of the class. Students will be expected to analyze and develop skills to make healthy decisions as teenagers while preparing to transition into adulthood.

85000 Peer Leadership Program

5 credits

The Peer Leadership Program trains selected juniors and seniors to work with small groups of freshmen to aid in the transition to high school and develop a sense of community among our diverse student body. Throughout the school year, Peer Leaders will plan and facilitate lessons to groups of ninth graders focusing on increasing self-awareness, improving communication skills, and exploring typical adolescent issues while helping to empower each student to reach their maximum potential and develop life values that enhance social responsibility.

Students are selected based on a rigorous application and interview process and are required to attend training. No more than 60 students will be chosen.

OPTION II PHYSICAL EDUCATION PROGRAM

- 1. Any student interested in an Option II Physical Education Program is encouraged to meet with the Montgomery High School Health & Physical Education Supervisor Mrs. Naoma Green prior to approval. Please call 609 466-7600 Ext. 6113 for an appointment.
- 2. The parents/guardians and student will complete an application and submit it to the Montgomery High School Health & Physical Education Supervisor, Mrs. Naoma Green by May 16, 2014. Each application is reviewed on a case-by- case basis by the Option II Physical Education Program Committee.
- **3.** An Option II Physical Education Program will not be approved if it is a program that is offered through the Montgomery High School Athletic Department.
- **4.** In order for an Option II Physical Education Program to be considered for approval it must meet the New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standards for Physical Education Grades 9-12.
- 5. In order for an Option II Physical Education Program to be considered for approval, the instructor/coach of the program must be certified or hold credentials in the relevant discipline.
- **6.** In order for an Option II Physical Education Program to be considered for approval, the instructor/coach of the program must provide a letter to the supervisor of Health and Physical Education by May 16, 2014, which identifies the following information:
 - Weekly number of hours the student will participate.
 - Will the student need release time in order to participate? If so, when.
 - Instructor's credentials
 - The rigor and past successes of the program
 - If the student is eligible for special education services and has an Individualized Educational Plan, how will the program meet necessary modifications?
 - Identify what evidence the program will provide to demonstrate successful attendance.
 - Contact information

- 7. In order for an Option II Physical Education Program to be considered for approval, the student will need to demonstrate a need for release time from their school day.
- **8.** In order for an Option II Physical Education Program to be considered for approval, the student will need to accrue a minimum of 130 hours in their respective program per marking period.
- **9.** Any approved Option II Physical Education Program is in place of a student's physical education course, only students who are approved for an Option II Physical Education Program will be required to take their scheduled Health course during one of the four marking periods.
- **10.** Students who have an approved Option II Physical Education Program are not permitted to enroll in any additional courses.
- **11.** Students who have an approved Option II Physical Education Program will receive either a Passing (P) or Failing (F) as a grade.
- 12. A student's failure to adhere to the requirements of an Option II Physical Education Program due to a non-medical reason will result in the immediate enrollment of the student in a Montgomery High School Physical Education course, and the grade of (F) if their withdrawal from the program occurs beyond the eleventh day of the Marking Period.
- 13. Students who are injured and unable to participate in their approved Option II Physical Education Program must inform the Supervisor of Health and Physical Education immediately. These students will be required to adhere to the same procedures as students enrolled in a Montgomery High School Physical Education course, that is on a Physical Education Medical.
- 14. Students who have an approved Option II Physical Education Program are responsible for submitting, to the Supervisor of Health and Physical Education, evidence of their minimum 130 on the last day of the marking period. Submission of the minimum 130 hours must include verification from the student's instructor/coach. Students are responsible for submitting their hours in each marking period in which they do not have Health.
- 15. Students who have an approved Option II Physical Education Program are responsible for submitting, to the Supervisor of Health and Physical Education, a one page typed reflection of their experiences and thoughts about their respective program. The reflection is due to the Supervisor of Health and Physical Education on the last day of the marking period. Students are responsible for a reflection in each marking period in which they do not have Health.

- 16. The instructor/coach of the student who has been approved for an Option II Physical Education Program is responsible for submitting evidence to the Supervisor of Health and Physical Education, on the last day of the final marking period in which the Option II Physical Education Program is taken by the student, that the following goals have been addressed in the student's Option II Physical Education Program:
 - Goal 1 The student demonstrates competency in motors skills and movement patterns needed to perform a variety of physical activities.
 - <u>Goal 2</u> The student demonstrates an understanding of movement concepts, principles, strategies and tactics as they apply to the learning and performance of physical activities
 - <u>Goal 3</u> The student achieved and maintained a health enhancing level of physical fitness.
 - Goal 4 The student exhibited responsible personal and social behavior that respects self and others in physical activity settings.
 - <u>Goal 5</u> The student valued physical activity for health, enjoyment, challenge, self-expression, and /or social interaction.
- 17. Failure to provide the Supervisor of Health and Physical Education with any of the above required items (verification of hours, student reflection, and instructor/coach goal evaluation) on the last day of the marking period will be viewed as non-compliant to the Option II Physical Education Program procedures and result in a grade of (F) for the marking period.
- **18.** In consideration of the application, the Supervisor of Physical Education may visit and assess the site of the Option II Physical Education Program. The environment's facilities should be designed to help meet the student's educational goals.

PUPIL SERVICES PROGRAM

The Pupil Services Department offers a full continuum of programs for eligible students to support their overall success in school. Students are encouraged to participate in general education classes whenever possible with appropriate modifications, accommodations, and supplementary aids/ services that are recommended by the I.E.P. Team. Such supports include collaborative consultation provided on behalf of a student or group of students in the general education setting. Many courses also provide in-class support sections co-taught by both a general education teacher and a special education teacher. This collaborative teaching approach combines the expertise of the content area specialist and the special educator to meet the varied learning needs of students. Students who demonstrate more significant weakness in academic areas may receive instruction in special education classes specifically designed to address these deficits. example, small group resource replacement courses will be offered to students requiring additional support for core content classes. The Pupil Services Department also provides supplemental literacy and mathematics, study skills, and learning strategies in response to individual need student needs. Additional career planning and work study may be considered as well.

In addition, comprehensive programming is offered for students who display more significant learning needs. The Language-Learning Disabilities (LLD) Program provides intensive, targeted academic intervention, support for social integration into the school community and experiences to maximize post-secondary school outcomes. Participation in the LLD Program allows students the opportunity to access the curriculum at their individual starting points and demonstrate progress and mastery in typical and alternative ways. This setting also provides extensive opportunities for students to develop proficiency accessing assistive technology (e.g. text to speech/prediction software and digital or audio resources of information and literature). Community-Based Instruction is an integral component to the program.

SPECIAL EDUCATION COURSES

91005 Learning Strategies for High School Success 2.5 credits

This course is designed to provide academic and transitional support to freshman and sophomore special education students. The primary goal is to equip students with the tools that enable them to become independent learners and self-advocates. A major focus for this class will be the mapping out of their high school career, setting goals and making an academic plan. Students will begin a resume of accomplishments and activities keeping in mind future career interests and college choices. A career inventory will be completed by each individual to help guide students in their course selection/planning, extracurricular activities/work experience. Students will learn about their personal learning style, strategies for learning, self-advocacy, social skill development, problem solving, and prioritizing while going through the stages of researching and compiling a professional portfolio.

PREREQUISITE: Open to 9th and 10th grade students with recommendation by the Child Study Team

91006 Study Skills for Post-Secondary Success 2.5 credits

This course is designed to provide academic and transitional support to junior and senior special education students. Skill areas such as goal setting, action planning, prioritizing, and exploring transition options are the main focus. Students will continue collecting material for their portfolios and begin identifying accomplishments and achievements that they will be able to incorporate into their resumes/college applications. Skill areas such as improving note-taking skills, critical reading skills and writing for the college essay will also be addressed. In addition, students have the opportunity to create personal calendars for the college application process. These timelines will assist students with the tracking of application due dates, financial aid deadlines, scholarship application due dates, SAT/ACT test dates, and timely submission of transcripts.

PREREQUISITE: Open to 11th and 12th grade students with recommendation by the Child Study Team

91105 Reading-Writing Lab 5 credits

This course is designed to provide academic support in Reading and Written Language to students who are looking to improve specifically upon these skill areas. Students who struggle with grade level reading are afforded the opportunity for additional remediation in basic reading skills, the reading and writing process, comprehension, vocabulary, and written expression. This class also serves as a support to students in the ICS setting. Materials

and content will be reviewed for those students looking for better understanding of the literature presented in class. This course provides instruction in reading comprehension strategies, vocabulary-building, and written language. The students utilize content area materials to improve their ability to read for meaning, understand main ideas, and draw conclusions. The class also focuses on the writing process to develop skills in essay writing.

PREREQUISITE: Open to 9th through 12th grade students with recommendation by the Child Study Team

91106 Supplemental Reading

5 credits

Supplemental Reading serves as a complement to the replacement English course and addresses remediation and enhancement of skills in the basic reading, vocabulary, reading fluency, reading comprehension and written expression.

PREREQUISITE: Open to 9th through 12th grade students with recommendation by the Child Study Team

99960 Work Study

2.5 or 5 credits

Work Study provides special education students with an opportunity to enhance their career planning and sharpen skills that will be valuable for future employment. This can take a variety of forms and must take place during the school day. Students will receive credit upon completion of all requirements for either a semester or the full year depending on their Work Study assignment and a P (pass) of F (fail) will be recorded on their transcript.

INDEX

Career Exploration, 51 Advanced Algebra and Trigonometry, 28 Ceramics, 64 Advanced Drama III, 72 Ceramics II, 64 Advanced Photography, 63 Chinese 1, 49 Algebra I w/Lab, 27 Chinese 2, 50 Algebra I, 27 Chinese 3, 50 Algebra II, 28 Chinese 4, 50 Algebra II Honors, 28 Chamber Choir, 70 American Film and Culture, 23 Chamber Choir Honors, 70 AP Art History, 21 Chamber Orchestra, 68 AP Art Studio Chamber Orchestra Honors, 69 Concentrations, 62, 63 Chemistry, 35 AP Biology, 38 Chemistry Honors, 36 AP Calculus AB, 30 Communication Technology, 54 AP Calculus BC, 30 Computer Applications/Computer AP Calculus C, 30 Science, 52 AP Chemistry, 36 Concert Choir, 69 AP Computer Science A, 52 Concert Orchestra, 68 AP Economics, 22 Contemporary Literature, 16 AP English 11 - Language and Course Change and Credit Composition, 17 Information, 8 AP English 12 - Literature and Course Descriptions, 14 Course Placement, 7 Composition, 18 AP Environmental Science, 39 Course Withdrawal, 8 AP French 6, 44 Creative Expressions, 61 AP German 6, 46 Creative Writing Seminar I, 17 AP Government and Politics, 21 Creative Writing Seminar II, 18 AP Physics C: Mechanics, 34 Crime and Punishment, 23 AP Spanish 6, 48 Cultural Crafts, 64 AP Statistics, 31 Digital 2D Design, 64 AP U.S. History I - Part I, 20 Discrete Mathematics, 32 AP U.S. History II - Part II, 21 Early Dismissal, 9 Architectural Design I, 56 Early Graduation, 2 Architectural Design II, 56 Elements of Human Behavior, 23 Art Honors Portfolio, 61 Elements of Advanced Algebra Basic Accounting, 53 and Trigonometry, 26 Biology, 37 Elements of Algebra II, 26 Biology Honors, 38 Elements of Geometry, 25 Blues to Beatles, 71 Engineering Design & Materials Business Administration, 53 Fabrication I, 57 Business and Personal Law, 53 Engineering Design & Materials Calculus, 29 Fabrication II, 57

Engineering Drawing and Computer Aided Design and Drafting

(CADD), 58

English, 15

English Literature and

Composition 9, 15

English Literature and

Composition 9 - Honors, 17

English Literature and

Composition 10, 15

English Literature and

Composition 10 - Honors, 17

English Composition and American

Literature 11, 15

English Composition and

American Literature 11 -

Honors, 17

Environmental Science, 39

Expository Writing Workshop, 18

Family & Consumer

Sciences/Culinary Arts, 59

Fashion and Clothing, 60

Financial Literacy, 53

Foundations of JAVA, 52

French 1, 42

French 2, 42

French 3, 43

French 4, 43

French 5, 43

French 5 - Honors, 43

Game Design & Application

Development, 52

Geometry, 27

Geometry - Honors, 27

German 1, 44

German 2, 44

German 3, 45

German 4, 45

German 5, 45

German 5 - Honors, 45

Grade Point Average, 5

Grading, 6

Grading Information, 3

Graduation Requirements, 1

Health, Safety and Physical

Education, 73

Honors Course Expectations -

English, 16

Honors Course Expectations -Social

Studies, 20

Honors Portfolio, 61

Honor Rolls, 4

Incomplete Grades, 9

Industrial Arts/Pre-Engineering, 56

International Cuisine & Culture, 59

Introduction to Computer

Languages, 52

Introduction to Culinary Arts, 59

Introduction to Drama I, 72

Introduction to Drama II, 72

Introduction to Engineering, 58

Introduction to Entrepreneurship, 54

iSTEM - Advanced Scientific

Investigations, 40

Journalism I, 51

Journalism II, 51

Latin 1, 48

Latin 2, 48

Latin 3, 49

Latin 3 Honors, 49

Latin 4, 49

Learning Strategies for High School

Success, 79

Level Changes, 8

Math Connections I -

NJASK 8, 27

Math Connections IV,

Alternative High School

Assessment (AHSA), 25

Mathematics, 24

Math Prerequisites, 24

Mathematics Proficiency Tests, 24

Media & Graphic Communication I,

56

Media & Graphic Communication II,

56

Montgomery High School

Chorale, 70

Music, 66 Spanish 2, 46 Music in Culture, 71 Spanish 3, 47 Option II Guidelines, 10 Spanish 4, 47 Peer Leadership Program, 74 Spanish 5, 47 Photography I, 62 Spanish 5 - Honors, 47 Photography II, 62 Spanish Cinema, 48 Physics, 33 Special Education Courses, 79 Physics Honors, 34 Speech Arts, 72 Portfolio Projects: Sports & Entertainment Architecture, 57 Marketing, 54 Computer Aided Drafting & Statistics, 31 Design, 57 Studio I, 61 Engineering, 57 Studio II, 61 Media & Graphics Study Skills for Post-Secondary Communication, 57 Success, 79 Power, Energy & Transportation Supplemental Reading, 80 I, 58 Symphonic Band, 66 Precalculus, 29 Symphonic Winds, 66 Precalculus - Honors, 29 Television Production I, 54 Prerequisites, 7 Television Production II. 55 Proficiency Assessments, 12 Television Production III, 55 Public Speaking, 72 The Class of LIFE, 60 Pupil Services Program, 78 Transfer Students, 5 Radio Broadcasting, 55 U.S. History I, 20 Reading-Writing Lab, 79 U.S. History II, 20 Robotics & Mechanical Systems, 58 U.S. History: 1989-Present Science, 33 Honors, 20 Selected Shorts, 16 Visual and Performing Arts, 61 Senior Choice Seminar, 16 Waiver Applications, 7 Senior Seminar/Contemporary Webpage Design & Development, 53 Literature -Honors, 17 Wind Ensemble, 67 Sociology, 22 Wind Ensemble Honors, 67 Social Studies, 19 Work Study, 80 Somerset County Vocational World Languages, 42 Technical School, 13 World Studies, 19 Spanish 1, 46 World Studies Honors, 19

NOTES